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Accountability report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NHS bodies are statutorily obliged to prepare their annual report and accounts
in compliance with the determination and directions given by the Secretary of
State for Health. This section takes account of the Department of Health
guidance for NHS trusts in the manual for accounts.

The Trust Board

The Trust Board is a unitary board accountable for setting the trust’s strategic
direction, vision and values, monitoring performance against objectives,
ensuring high standards of corporate governance and helping to promote links
between the trust and the local community. The board consists of the
chairman, chief executive, four executive directors and seven non-executive
directors (NEDs) all with voting rights, plus four other executive directors who
attend board meetings in a non-voting capacity. The number of NEDs is one
higher than most NHS trusts, reflecting the size and complexity of Barts
Health's agenda as the largest trust in England. As at 1 April 2018, there were
no executive or non-executive vacancies. During 2017/18, two NExT directors
have also been invited to attend Board meetings in a non-voting capacity and
participate in Board commitiee meetings. Others may be invited to attend
board meetings for specific items as agreed with the chairman.

The Trust Board meet regularly in public so that it can discharge its duties (the
board met 9 times in public during 2017/18, including the annual general
meeting). The Trust Board has responsibility for the Trust's strategy, quality
and safety of healthcare services, education, training and research. Day-to-
day responsibility for implementing the trust’s strategy and delivering
operational requirements is delegated through the chief executive to the
executive directors and their teams. Key duties are set out in the Trust's
standing orders and standing financial instructions and board terms of
reference, which are reviewed every two years.

Board appointments

The chairman and chief executive take into account the required skills,
qualifications, experience and diversity of the board's composition as part of
the recruitment process to the board of Barts Health. The nominations and
remuneration commitiee help to identify the skills and experience required for
new appointments to executive director positions, while the chairman works
with NHS Improvement to identify the skills and experience required for any
new appointments to NED positions.
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Independence of NEDs

One of the NEDs is nominated by Queen Mary University of London.
Excluding this NED position, there are six NEDs and four executive directors.
Gautam Dalal is the senior independent director and vice chairman of the
Trust. NEDs are generally appointed for an initial four-year term, with the
chairman monitoring the composition of the board, its skills and knowledge in
the light of any NED changes or potential reappointment of NEDs for second
terms of office.

Board members -~ biographies of board members (as at 1 April 2018)

Mr lan Peters (chairman) joined Barts Health NHS Trust as chairman on 1
April 2017. After a successful career in financial services and energy, lan
retired in 2015 from Centrica, the parent company of British Gas, where he
held a number of senior roles including managing director. He is a trustee and
treasurer of the charity Carers UK and chairs a number of small technology
companies. lan also took on the role of vice chair of the Peabody housing
association when it merged with Family Mosaic during summer 2017, He has
formerly served as a non-executive director at Central and North West
London NHS Foundation Trust.

Ms Alwen Williams (chief executive) has been a manager in the NHS since
1980, working in primary care, community and acute services, commissioning
and joint planning. She became chief executive of Tower Hamlets Primary
Care Trust (PCT) in June 2004, was seconded to the post of chief executive
of East London and the City Alliance of PCTs in 2009 and in January 2011
became the chief executive of NHS East London and the City. In December
2011 Alwen also took on the role of chief executive of NHS Outer North East
London leading the two primary care trust clusters which cover all the London
boroughs in north east London: City and Hackney, Newham, Tower Hamlets,
Barking and Dagenham, Havering, Redbridge and Waltham Forest. From
April 2013, Alwen assumed the national role of director of delivery and
development for the NHS Trust Development Authority. On 1 June 2015,
Alwen moved to Barts Health NHS Trust as interim chief executive and
became substantive chief executive on 21 October 2015.

Mr Gautam Dalal (non-executive director, vice chairman and senior
independent direclor) is a chartered accountant and a former senior audit
partner at KPMG London. From 2000 to 2003 he was chairman and chief
executive of KPMG's practice in India, which he helped to establish. He was
formerly a non-executive director of Barts and The London NHS Trust from
September 2010 to March 2012. Gautam is a member of the Governing Body
and Honorary Treasurer of the School of Oriental and African Studies and is
board member of Camellia plc and ZincOx Resources plc. Previously he was
a founder board member of the UK India Business Council, a trustee of The
National Gallery and a member of the Asian Business Association Committee
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of the London Chamber of Commerce. Gautam is also the Trust Board's vice-
chairman and senior independent director.

Mr Alastair Camp (non-executive director) became an associate non-
executive director with NHS Tower Hamlets in 2008, before becoming chair of
the primary care trust and then vice-chairman of NHS East London and the
City until March 2012. His business career has included 34 years with
Barclays plc, during which he led businesses in the UK and overseas. These
included appointments as managing director (Caribbean and Bahamas),
managing director (UK Small Business Banking) and managing director (UK
Mid Corporate Banking), where he served on the UK Banking Executive
Board. He was also Barclays Group corporate responsibility director and a
trustee of the Barclays Group Pension Fund. Alastair is a Magistrate and
trustee of the London Institute of Banking and Finance pension fund. He holds
a Masters Degree in Business Administration and is a fellow of the Chartered
Institute of Bankers.

Professor Steve Thornton (non-executive director) is vice-principal and
executive dean (health) of Barts and The London School of Medicine and
Dentistry and assumed his role as non-executive director in February 2016.
Previously he had held the position of pro vice chancellor and executive dean
of medicine at the University of Exeter. Prior to this he has held positions at
the universities of Newcastle, Cambridge, Warwick and (as dean) the
Peninsula College of Medicine and Dentistry. Professor Thornton is a clinical
scientist whose speciality is obstetrics and gynaecology. He continues to
undertake leading roles at The Royal College of Obstetricians and
Gynaecologists and Medical Schools Council, where he has recently been
elected to the executive team.

Dr Thoreya Swage (non-executive director) has significant experience in the
NHS both as a clinician in psychiatry and a senior manager in various NHS
purchasing organisations covering the acute sector as well as primary care
development. Her previous NHS executive experience was as executive
director of a health authority with a remit to develop primary care services
including GP commissioning and GP fundholding. Since 1997 Thoreya has
run a successful management consultancy business during which time she
has developed particular expertise in the field of service reviews and
redesign, strategic development, clinical governance, commissioning and
procurement with the NHS and independent sector, and education and
training. During 2006-07 she was deputy medical director at the commercial
directorate at the Department of Health with the responsibility to set up the
clinical governance processes for the National Independent Sector Treatment
Programme. She has taught at King’s College, London and has researched
and written a number of published articles. Thoreya is also a non-executive
director at Frimley Health NHS Foundation Trust.

Mr Mark Higson (non-executive director) joined Barts Health NHS Trust in
October 2016. He has had a wide ranging career and has managed major
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transformations at board level in a number of complex, global businesses.
From 2007 to 2014 he led a strategic review and transformation programme
as the managing director of operations at Royal Mail. An engineer by
background, in prior years Mark was a director at BPB Plc, a global building
materials producer, and has also worked in international businesses in the
chemicals, food and aerospace industries. He has a passion for achieving
high performance in safety, customer service and operating efficiency by
developing leaders and fully engaging people in continuous improvement.

Ms Natalie Howard (non-executive director) joined Barts Health NHS Trust in
December 2017. Natalie joined AgFe in 2010 as a Partner and heads the
firm’s real estate lending group. Natalie started her career in 1989 at Paribas.
Subsequently she worked at Charterhouse; Morgan Stanley, where she was a
founding member of their European CMBS business; Barclays Capital, where
she helped establish their CMBS programme and was responsible for the real
estate lending group; and Lehman Brothers where she was the Managing
Director in charge of the firm’s real estate debt funds for Europe and Asia.

Ms Margaret Exley (non-executive director) joined Barts Health NHS Trust in
January 2018. Following her early career in the Civil Service, Margaret has
developed her career in organisational and culture change and has founded
and led a number of consuitancies including Kinsley Lord and, currently SCT
Consulting. She has in recent times provided organisational development
support at NHS England, Department of Health and at HM Treasury board
level.

Dr Tim Peachey (deputy chief executive) is a consultant in anaesthesia, who
was initially seconded part-time to Barts Health to support the Trust's
improvement programme (in his capacity as the NHS Trust Development
Authority’s associate medical director). Tim's former roles at the Royal Free
London NHS Foundation Trust included chief clinical information officer and
he has previously held posts as clinical director, medical director, divisional
director and interim chief executive of Barnet and Chase Farm Hospitals NHS
Trust in the 18 months prior to its acquisition by the Royal Free. As deputy
chief executive, Dr Tim Peachey holds board-level responsibility for
information and ICT, corporate governance and communications, estates and
facilities.

Ms Caroline Alexander (chief nurse) joined Barts Health in 2016, bringing her
significant nursing leadership experience at director level across a breadth of
portfolios - healthcare provision, commissioning and system leadership. She
was director of nursing and therapies for Tower Hamlets PCT and then
director of nursing and quality for NHS ELC then NHS NEL clusters of primary
care trusts. Caroline was regional chief nurse for NHS England in London for
three years before taking up her current post of chief nursing officer for Barts
Health. Caroline graduated as a nurse in 1987 from Edinburgh University
(BSc/RGN) and has an MSc in Nursing Studies from South Bank University.
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Caroline was a 2008 Florence Nightingale Leadership Scholar. She is a
visiting professor at Bucks New University.

Professor Alistair Chesser (chief medical officer) trained as a medical student
at Cambridge and The Royal London Hospital, undertaking his junior doctor
training at St Bartholomew's, Whipps Cross and The Royal London. He then
conducted research as part of the William Harvey Institute at QMUL before
being appointed as a consultant nephrologist at Barts and The London in
2003. Alistair has worked as associate dean for undergraduates and as the
clinical academic group director for emergency care and acute medicine at
Barts Health since 2012 prior to his appointment as chief medical officer in
2016.

Ms Chrisha Alagaratnam (chief finance officer) was formerly interim chief
executive at Epsom and St Helier University Hospitals NHS Trust and has
worked in the NHS for 20 years. As director of finance and performance,
Epsom and St Helier achieved breakeven in 2014-15 and she led the work to
identify efficiencies and effectiveness while simultaneously, creating room for
investments fo meet stringent London quality standards. Chrisha’s portfolio at
the time also included her role as deputy chief executive and leading on the
organisational progress towards foundation trust status. Prior to working at
Epsom and St Helier, Chrisha alse worked at Croydon Health Services NHS
Trust, where she was interim director of finance and information as well as
director of the foundation trust in 2010. Chrisha is a fellow of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr Michael Pantlin (director of people) joined Barts Health on 1 October 2012
from the Royal Surrey County Hospital NHS Foundation Trust. Previously he
was with the Royal Bank of Scotland in commercial and retail banking sectors
across England and Wales. Prior to this, Michael headed HR for the specialist
brands of the Thomson Travel Group. Originally, during his professional
training, Michael spent some time working at the Mildmay Hospital, which
specialises in palliative care for HIV/AIDS. He moved to the private sector
knowing that one day he wanted to return to a similar organisation.

Mr Andrew Hines (director of corporate development) has spent the last 23
years in leadership roles in the NHS, working at Board level in a number of
organisations. After graduating from Cambridge University he joined the NHS
Management Training Scheme, and he has spent the bulk of his career in
senior healthcare leadership roles in acute and specialist NHS provider
organisations in London and the South of England, including Surrey and
Sussex Healthcare NHS Trust and Great Ormond Street Hospital for Children
NHS Foundation Trust. He has held board level responsibility for operations,
strategy, business development, communications, IT and estates & facilities.
Over the last six years Andrew has held senior regional leadership roles in
London. As interim regional director for the NHS Trust Development Authority
he was responsible for oversight of the performance of London’s NHS Trusts,
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before setting up NHS Improvement's LLondon regional team and leading on
strategic and operational planning as regional Chief Operating Officer.

Mr Tony Halton (director of clinical operations) oversees the performance of
the clinical operations across the Barts Health Group, to ensure that our
patients receive clinical services which are safe, compassionate, high quality,
timely, accessible and efficient. He joined Barts Health in 2012 as Group
Director for Clinical Support Services. He is an experienced NHS senior
leader and has previously as a Chief Nurse, Chief Operating Officer and in
government as the Programme Director for Modernising Nursing Careers at
the Department of Health.Tony is proud to be a Registered Nurse. His clinical
experience majored in the care of people with HIV/AIDS and he feels
privileged to have worked with people with very complex care needs. The
principles of providing high quality and personalised care inform how he works
to influence care delivery that is outstanding.Tony is also an accredited
Executive Coach and specialises in developing leaders, career transition,
resilience, organisational change and achieving results in challenging and
complex situations

Mr Ralph Coulbeck (director of strategy) began his career on the NHS
Management Training Scheme and has worked in the NHS, parliament and
government. He was previously director of strategy at the NHS Trust
Development Authority and also worked as chief adviser to the NHS chief
executive Sir David Nicholson. Ralph Coulbeck was appointed director of
strategy for the Trust in April 2016.

Trust Board and board committees

The membership for the trust board is published on the Trust's website. The
trust board elects to establish board committees to assist it to carry out its
functions, which can include the implementation of time-limited board
committees or board committee sub-groups. The approved board committee
structure and current chairs as at 1 April 2018 are shown below in Chart 1.

Terms of reference for board committees are subject to review on a two-
yearly basis. Exception reports are provided to the Trust board (based on use
of a standard proforma reporting template) by each of the board committees
following their meetings. Board assurance committees also produce an
annual report summarising how each has met its duties during the year.
These reports are available with the Trust board meeting papers on the
website.
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Barts Health

Chart 1
Trust Board
Chair: lan Peters
Ag‘;‘:‘_gtnyce Audit and Trust Executive fi:i'::;gg? Nominations and
Committee ELE (T Committee Committee Renuneiation
Chair: Thoreya Shasuan Ghaigliven Chair: Alastair ChC‘orTmitFt’e?
: ili ; air. lan Peters
SRR Dalal Williams Camp

Audit and risk committee

The following are key duties of the audit and risk committee (an assurance
committee of the board):

To provide assurance to the board based on review of the
establishment and maintenance of an effective system of governance,
risk management and internal control across the trust’s activities that
support the achievement of the organisation’s objectives. The audit and
risk committee is assisted in this duty by the quality assurance
committee, which has responsibility for providing assurance in relation
to clinical quality and safety aspects.

To ensure that there is an effective internal audit function put in place
by management that meets mandatory NHS Internal Audit standards
and provides appropriate independent assurance to the audit and risk
commitiee, chief executive and board.

Consideration of the major findings of internal audit work and the
management response and ensuring coordination between the internal
and external auditors to optimise audit resources.

To review the work and findings of the external auditor and consider
the management responses to their work.

To act as an auditor panel, making recommendations to the beoard on
appointment and removal of external audit partners, and to agree the
approach to be taken to maintain objectivity of external auditors in the
event that the external audit partner is commissioned by the trust to
undertake any non-audit work.

To review proposed changes to the standing orders and standing
financial instructions.
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¢ To review the annual accounts to determine their completeness,
objectivity, integrity and accuracy before they are presented to the trust
board.

The chair of the audit and risk committee is a chartered accountant with a
strong background in corporate finance and audit. Membership is in line with
good practice recommendations and a self-assessment of the committee’s
performance is conducted annually. Exception reports are provided to the
trust board (based on use of a standard proforma reporting template)
following each meeting. At its meeting on 13 September 2017, the trust board
received the audit and risk committee’s annual report, which confirmed
compliance with key duties set out in it terms of reference and identifying
areas requiring further assurance.

Membership: 3 non executive directors (Mr Gautam Dalal — chair, Mr Mark
Higson -vice chair, Dr Thoreya Swage).

In attendance: chief executive {(min. once per year), deputy chief executive,
chief finance officer, director of corporate development, NExT director (Ms
Ashantel Lachhani)

Quality assurance committee

The quality assurance committee is a standing assurance committee of the
trust board (reporting via the audit and risk committee) and acts on its behalf
to monitor, review and report on the quality of clinical services provided by the
trust. In carrying out its role, the quality assurance committee supports the
audit and risk committee through providing dedicated time and resources to
review, for example, clinical aspects of assurance work carried out by internal
audit and the clinical audit functions. There is a shared membership of the
audit and risk committee and the quality assurance committee and the chair of
the quality assurance committee has relevant clinical experience and
qualifications.

The terms of reference include a remit to examine on the board’s behalf key
aspecls of operational delivery, given its close relationship to the quality
agenda. During 2017/18, the quality assurance committee included a specific
focus on implementation of the trust's improvement plan, performance against
national access standards and quality and safety arrangements at site and
clinical board level. Exception reports are provided to the trust board (based
on use of a standard proforma reporting template) following each meeting. At
its meeting on 25 October 2017, the audit and risk committee reviewed the
quality assurance committee’s annual report, which confirmed compliance
with key duties set out in it terms of reference.

Membership: 3 non executive directors (Dr Thoreya Swage — chair, Ms
Margaret Exley — vice chair, Prof Steve Thornton) chief executive and/or
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deputy chief executive, chief medical officer, chief nurse, director of clinical
operations, NHSI improvement director.

Nominations and remuneration committee

The Trust's nominations and remuneration committee comprises the chairman
and all NEDs. The chief executive and the director of human resources
usually attend meetings. The committee has delegated authority from the trust
board to appoint and remove the chief executive and, together with the chief
executive, to appoint and remove other executive directors. Appointments to
non-executive director posis are approved externally by NHS Improvement,
which also sets the remuneration and terms and conditions for chairs and
NEDs of NHS trusts. Appointment, removal, remuneration, allowances and
terms and conditions of office for executive directors (and the structure of
remuneration, allowances and terms and conditions for other defined senior
officers) and any changes to these terms is determined by the nominations
and remuneration committee with due regard to performance and national
guidance. Exception reports (based on use of a standard proforma reporting
template) accompanied by oral updates from the chair are provided to the
trust board following each meeting.

The remuneration of all board members is published in the remuneration
section of this report and covers all remuneration received.

Membership: Chairman and all non executive directors

Finance and investment committee

In addition to the above statutory committees, the trust board is supported by
a finance and investment committee. This committee undertakes, on behalf of
the trust board, objective scrutiny of the trust's financial plans, investment
policy and major investment decisions. The committee reviews the trust's
monthly financial performance and identifies the key issues and risks requiring
discussion or decision by the trust board. Exception reports (based on use of
a standard proforma reporting template) are provided to the trust board
following each meeting. Although not a board assurance committee, the
finance and investment commitiee monitors its performance against key
duties set in its terms of reference and last reviewed its terms of reference in
May 2016.

Membership: Four non executive directors (Mr Alastair Camp — chair, Ms
Natalie Howard - vice chair, Mr Gautam Dalal, Mr Mark Higson), chief
executive, deputy chief executive, chief finance officer, director of people,
director of financial improvement, NExT director (Ms Kim Kinnaird).
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Trust Executive Committee (executive committee)

Barts Health

While not a Board committee chaired by a NED, the Trust Executive
Committee, chaired by the Chief Executive, is the principal executive
committee. It leads on implementation of the Trusf's clinical, operational and
financial strategy and plans; and ensuring appropriate integration of clinical
services and sites, between clinical and corporate functions and within the

Trust and with external partners.

Membership: Executive directors (voting and non-voting), hospital/CSS

managing directors, director of estates and facilities, director of

communications

Attendance at trust board and principal board committees

Committee Number of Average
meetings attendance
held rate in 2017-18
Trust board (parts 1 and 2) 18 88%
Audit and risk committee 4 83%
| Quality assurance committee 7 | 8% |
| Nominations and remuneration committee | 3 86%
Finance and investment committee 12 81%

10
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Attendance by members of board committees, 2017-18

Barts Hea_lth

*The below figures indicate the number of meetings attended by the relevant
member/total number of meetings held during their period in post

Board Trust Trust Audit and | Quality Nominations Finance
member board part | board risk assurance | and and
1 part2 | committee | committee | remuneration | investment
(excluding committee committee
AGM)
lan Peters 718 8/10 2/2 313
(88%) (80%) (100%) (100%)
Gautam 718 9/10 4/4 313 7M1
RElL] (88%) | (90%) | (100%) (100%) (64%)
Thoreya a/8 9/10 4/4 77 313
Swage 0, /] o 0, 1]
(100%) (90%) | (100%) (100%) (100%)
Alastair 8/8 10110 213 11/11
Camp 0 o a 0
{100%) (100%) (67%) (100%)
Steve 6/8 9/10 217 313
UEs (75%) | (90%) (29%) (100%)
Mark Higson | 7/8 9/10 2/4 113 8/11
{88%) (90%) | (50%) (33%) (73%)
Natalie 172 1/2 1M 213
T (50%) | (50%) (100%) (67%)
Margaret 212 212 1M
Exley (100%) | (100%) (100%)
Karen West | 6/6 718 on 617
(100%) (88%) (0%) (86%)
Tracey 5/5 718 4/4 11
Rl (100%) | (88%) (100%) | (100%)

11
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Alwen 8/8 10/10 | 4/4 [ 10111
Williams (100%) | (100%) | (100%) | o1%)
Chrisha 458 4110 an
Alagaratham 50(%) (40%) : (36%)
Cargline 8/8 10/10
Alexander | 10001y | (100%) (100%)
Alistair 8/8 9/10 717
Chesser | (100%) | (@0%) (oow  |(EREERER
Tim Peachey | 8/8 10/10 | 77 ; B | 10/11
(100%) (100%) | (100%) | (91%)
Michael 7/8 8/10 AR et 811
FEIiL 88%) | (80%) (73%)
Ralph 8/8 9/10 B
Coulbeck (100%) (90%)
Tony Halton | 6/7 719 517
(86%) (78%) (71%)
Andrew 4/4 5/5
Al (100%) | (100%)
Jacqueline 1N 0/1
Totterdell (100%) (0%)
lan Walker 2/2 2/2
(100%) (100%)
Lesley 4/4
Stephen o
(director of Sl
recovery)
Bill Boa 4/4
{director of o
financial )
improvement)

12
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Board effectiveness

During 2017/18, substantive appointments and reappointments have been
made to non-executive and executive director roles to strengthen and
consolidate the effectiveness of the trust board and in support of the group
model. In line with best practice, an externally-facilitated Well Led assessment
will incorporate a review of board development. This will be conducted during
early 2018/19 and the output of this will also link in with the planned
development of a Trustwide quality improvement approach.

Trust board appraisals

The process for appraisals has been established with the chair of NHS
Improvement conducting appraisals for the trust chairman; the chairman or
vice chairman conducting appraisals for the non-executive directors and the
chief executive; and the chief executive conducting appraisais for executive
directors. These are completed on an annual basis during quarter one each
year. Appraisals of executive and non-executive director performance for
2017-18 are scheduled for completion by the end of the first quarter of 2018-
19 (with all executive director appraisals booked in diaries). The output of the
review of executives’ performance against objectives will be reported to the
trust’'s nominations and remuneration committee for review, in line with the
committee’s terms of reference.

Board members - interests, gifts and hospitality; fit and proper persons
regulations; declarations and expenses

The staff policies and remuneration section of this report includes details of all
non-executive director and executive director interests, including related party
transactions. As a standing item at every board and board committee
meeting, members are asked to declare any new interests, gifis or hospitality
and these are minuted. Board members are also required to complete and
sign a declaration of interest form on an annual basis (details of declared
interests are included in this annual report). Fit and proper persons self-
assessments are also completed annually in line with national fit and proper
persons regulations. This addresses the requirement for directors to
confirm/provide evidence to support their fitness to practice and for
organisations to satisfy themselves in this regard. The trust office (on behalf of
the chairman) maintains records of the following for each executive director
and non-executive director:

e An annual self-declaration on fitness to practice completed and signed
by each individual.

o Disclosure and barring service status checks.

o Confirmation of a central check against register of individuals subject to
bankruptcy restrictions, sequestration or debt relief orders.

o Confirmation of professional qualifications.

13
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The annual report and accounts summarise non-executive director and
executive director expenses claimed following review on a six monthly basis
by the audit and risk committee.

Modern Slavery Act — Board Statement

On 1 March 2017, the trust board issued a declaration regarding its
arrangements to support compliance with the Modern Slavery Act 2015 and
this has been reproduced below to reconfirm this commitment.

‘Barts Health NHS Trust is committed to upholding the provisions of the
Modern Slavery and Human Trafficking Act 2015, and we expect our staff and
suppliers to comply with the iegislation.

The Trust has updated relevant Trust policies to highlight obligations where
any issues of modern slavery or human trafficking might arise, particularly in
our guidelines on safeguarding adults and children, tendering for goods and
services, and recruitment and retention.

The procurement process has been reviewed to ensure that human trafficking
and modern slavery issues are considered at an early stage, with self-
certification for potential suppliers that their supply chains comply with the law.
We procure many goods and services under frameworks endorsed by the
Cabinet Office and Department of Health, under which suppliers such as
Crown Commercial Services and NHS Supply Chain adhere to a code of
conduct on forced labour. We uphold professional practices relating to
procurement and supply, and ensure procurement staff attend regular training
on changes to procurement legislation.

The Trust requires all new staff to complete a safeguarding course, which
covers obligations under the Act. We also require external agencies supplying
temporary staff to demonstrate compliance with the legislation. All clinical and
non-clinical staff have a responsibility to consider issues regarding modern
slavery and incorporate their understanding of these into their day-to-day
practices.

The Trust Board believes that the Trust is following good practice in
implementing steps to prevent slavery and human trafficking’.

System development and integrated care

The Trust has a key role in wider system developments at both borough and
STP level:

¢ As a key partner within the East London Health Care Partnership, a STP
partnership covering all commissioners and providers within north east
London, leading and contributing to a range of work areas, including its
estates strategy (which includes the redevelopment of Whipps Cross,
changes to emergency care at King George's hospital and considering
options for future development of Mile End and Homerton hospitals) and

14
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collaborative productivity, including initiatives to reduce costs of procurement
and pathology services.

* The development of an Accountable Care System (ACS) in Waltham Forest
will be a key focus in 2018/19. Partners in the ACS are Barts Health, NELFT,
Waltham Forest CCG, Waltham Forest Local Authority and the Waltham
Forest GP Federation (Fednet).

« Barts Health is a key pariner in the developing of the Newham Integrated
Care system, working with partners in primary, community and social care,
including ELFT, Newham Health Collaborative and London Borough of
Newham.

= Tower Hamlets Together brings together health and care commissioners and
providers who are working together to deliver integrated health and care
services for the population of Tower Hamlets. Key pariners include: Barts
Health NHS Trust; East London Foundation Trust; London Borough of Tower
Hamlets; and Tower Hamlets GP Care Group.

The chief Executive, director of strategy and other executives represent the
Trust on key sector and borough groups supporting the above work. Further
details of this work are captured in the Trust's business plan 2018/19.

Risk management and systems of control

The trust board is accountable for delivery of the trust's objectives and robust
risk reporting is a key aspect of this. Approval of the trust's risk management
policy is reserved to the trust board.

Board assurance framework

The board assurance framework sets out the principal risks to achievement of
the trust's strategic objectives, while the annual governance statement
{included in the next section of the report) provides a year-end assessment of
the trust's systems of control and key issues that materialised during the year,
thereby informing plans for 2018-19.

15
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The principal risks to the trust objectives in the board assurance framework
(BAF) are detailed in Appendix 1 of this report section.

BAF entries are identified through review of the trust’s main risk reporting tool
(the risk register) and through discussions with board directors, informed by
performance reporting and assurances received in-year. The board assurance
framework format includes an explicit link between the entries shown and
related high risks appearing on the risk register. Although the trust board
owns the board assurance framework, the executive risk management
committee, chaired by the chief executive, plays a key role in monitoring the
key risks to the organisation, with the board seeking assurances directly or
through its assurance committees (with specific lead roles assigned to board
committees to seek assurance on the BAF entries as reflected above). The
audit and risk committee received and reviewed the BAF and highest risks on
the risk register during the year ahead of Board submission to provide
assurance on the effectiveness of risk escalation and monitor the
development of risk management processes.

The above entries describe the principal risks to the trust's operational, clinical
quality, financial, workforce, strategic and academic objectives. The trust
reported moderate success in mitigating board assurance framewaork risk
scores downwards during 2017/18. The year end version of the BAF identified
one board assurance framework entries that had been sufficiently addressed
to reduce it to its target risk score {enabling its removal). Although fewer 20-
scored risks remained the BAF still reflected a significant proportion of high
risk score entries, with some increasing risk scores during the year. This was
as a result of increased operational and financial pressures and some
weaknesses in controls identified during the year. The year-end BAF scores
signalled the organisation's continued high risk profile despite progress
identified internally and by external stakeholders and regulators. in light of the
ongoing risks faced (in part due to the wider health economy climate), it is
anticipated that the trust’s strategic risk appetite will be low as it enters
2018/19.

Risk register and overarching risk management system

During the year work has continued to strengthen and improve risk
management systems and processes across the organisation. CQC
inspections in 2014 had indicated that risk management systems and
processes were not fully embedded at a hospital-level and, as a
consequence, not working effectively. The development of the group model
and enhanced site-based leadership has led to improved risk management
maturity.

The trust risk management committee has met regularly throughout the year
and maintains corporate oversight of risk in the organisation. At each meeting
the committee reviews the trust's high level risks and receives a quarterly
metrics report that details site and directorate performance. During the year,
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the risk management committee and audit and risk committee have approved
a revised risk management policy and reviewed and agreed the overall
direction and approach for developing the trust's risk management strategy.

In addition to new site-based governance arrangements for the management
of risk, risk management training continued in 2017/18. This comprised drop-
in sessions at our major hospitals which were well attended and well
evaluated in addition to ad hoc bespoke training. We will continue to offer
training on risk management, targeting key roles with risk management
involvement.

Thematic review of our risks has continued to inform the approach to
mitigation. This has worked well in the case of risks related to medical
equipment. This subset of our risk register forms a key component in the
process of replacing medical equipment, allowing equipment to be replaced in
a prioritised way so that we make best use of the resource available.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 2017/18

BARTS HEALTH NHS TRUST

1. Scope of responsibility

As Accountable Officer, and Chief Executive of this Board, | have responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of internal control that supports the achieverment of the
Trust’s policies, aims and objectives, while safeguarding the public funds and the
organisation’s assets for which | am personally responsible, in accordance with the
responsibilities assigned to me. | am also responsible for ensuring that the Trust is
administered prudently and economically and that resources are applied efficiently
and effectively.

| also acknowledge my responsibilities as set out in the Accountable Officer
Memorandum, including in relation to the production of statutory accounts,
effective management systems, and regularity and propriety of expenditure.

As Chief Executive [ am accountable to the Trust Board. | am also accountable, via
the NHS Accounting Officer, to Parliament for the stewardship of resources within
the Trust.

2. Governance framework and purpose of the system of internal
control

The Trust’s governance framework and system of internal control is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to
achieve policies, aims and objectives; it can therefore only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on
an ongoing process designed to:

¢ Identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the organisation’s
policies, aims and objectives; and

e Evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should

they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically.
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The system of internal control has been in place in Barts Health NHS Trust for the
year ended 31 March 2018 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and
accounts.

2017/18 was a year of improvement for Barts Health. The Trust's overall group
operating model governance structure was strengthened, with support to the Trust
Executive Committee through Hospital Management Boards providing operational
leadership at site level and refreshed Clinical Boards providing a focus on clinical
strategy and standardisation across sites. Progress was made against the Trust’s
quality improvement plan, with significant improvements identified by the Care
Quality Commission following re-inspections of services at The Royal London,
Newham University and Whipps Cross University Hospitals (reflected in overall
improved ratings for each hospital). A ‘good’ rating was awarded to St
Bartholomew’s Hospital as well as an overall improvement in the rating for the Trust
following its May 2017 Well Led review from 'inadequate’ to 'requires improvement'.
The Trust's quality improvement plan has been recalibrated for 2018/19 accordingly,
to focus on getting to good and outstanding ratings. A further CQC Well Led
assessment is anticipated in early 2018/19. The Trust continued to face financial
challenges in 2017/18 and reported a deficit of £145m (£109m after STF funding), in
line with the deficit control total target set by NHS Improvement, and is now working
towards achieving a breakeven position in coming years. The Trust's immediate
objectives remain focused on exiting financial and quality special measures during
2018/19.

Trust Board and Committee structure

The role of the Trust Board is to govern the organisation effectively and in so doing
to build public and stakeholder confidence that their health and healthcare is in safe
hands and ensure that the Trust is providing safe, high quality, patient-centred care.
The Board has complied with the relevant aspects of the HM Treasury/Cabinet Office
Corporate Governance Code. The Trust is not required to comply with the UK Code
of Corporate Governance. With reference to the requirements of the Trust's
Standing Orders and Standing Financial Instructions, the Chief Finance Officer and
the Trust Secretary retain oversight of the arrangements for the discharge of
statutory functions and no gaps in legal compliance have been identified. The below
section supports the Trust’s approach to compliance with NHS provider licence
condition 4 in terms of effective governance structures, responsibilities of directors
and subcommittees, the submission of timely and effective information, reporting
lines and board oversight.

The Trust Board has met on a monthly basis to consider strategic priorities and met8

times during the year in public {not including the Annual General Meeting). Voting
members comprise the Chair, seven non executive directors and five corporate
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executive directors (including the Chief Executive). Four corporate executive
directors attend the Board in a non-voting capacity; and they have been joined by
two NEXT Directors (as part of a development programme to support potential non
executive director candidates).

There have been two changes to the Board’s voting membership during 2017/18
with two new Non Executive Directors, Natalie Howard and Margaret Exley, joining
the Board in December 2017 and January 2018, filling vacancies which had arisen
during the year. There were no Trust Board vacancies at the end of the financial
year.

Trust Board meetings are held in public and the papers are made available on the
Trust website in advance of each meeting. The Board regularly reviews performance
against national standards and regulatory requirements via an Integrated
Performance Report and a summary of performance against these priorities in
2017/18 is included in the Trust's Annual Report. The Board places a strong
emphasis on the quality and safety of patient care and, in addition to performance
reports, regularly hears directly from patients, carers and staff including through
patient and staff stories and conducting ward and department visits.

Following his substantive appointment at the end of 2016/17, the Chairman
undertook an initial review of Board membership, including an assessment of
individual and collective strengths and development needs. A 'Well Led' self-
assessment process commenced in April 2018 and during quarter 1 of 2018/19 this
will be extended to include an external independent and peer review aspect. This
process will provide an appropriate independent assessment of Board development
and any recommendations for ways of working during 2017/18. A CQC re-inspection
in relation to the Essential Standards ‘Well Led’ domain is scheduled to take place in
early 2018/19.

The principal committees established by the Trust Board to support it in undertaking
its responsibilities are:

Audit and Risk Committee

The Audit and Risk Committee has overall responsibility for independently
monitoring, reviewing and reporting to the Trust Board on all aspects of
governance, risk management and internal control. It is supported in this
role by the Quality Assurance Committee.

Quality Assurance Committee

The Quality Assurance Committee monitors, reviews and reports on the
quality of services provided by the Trust. This includes the review of
governance and internal control systems at Trust and site level to ensure the
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delivery of safe, high quality, patient-centred care; quality indicators flagged
as of concern through escalation reporting or as requested by the Trust
Board; and progress in implementing the Trust's quality improvement plan
and action plans to address identified shortcomings in the quality of services,
for example following CQC inspections.

Nominations and Remuneration Committee

The Nominations and Remuneration Committee has delegated authority
from the Trust Board to appoint and remove the Chief Executive and,
together with the Chief Executive, to appoint and remove the other Executive
Directors. It also determines the overall remuneration policy of the Trust;
sets the remuneration, allowances and other terms and conditions of office
for the Trust's Executive Directors; and recommends and monitors the
structure of remuneration for senior managers.

Finance and Investment Committee

The Finance and Investment Committee undertakes on behalf of the Trust
Board objective scrutiny of the Trust’s financial plans, investment policy and
major investment decisions. The Committee reviews the Trust's monthly
financial performance and identifies the key issues and risks requiring
discussion or decision by the Trust Board. During the year, there has been a
significant focus on the implementation and delivery of the Trust’s Financial
Recovery Plan, in line with objectives to exit Financial Special Measures.

Trust Executive Committee {(executive committee)

While not a Board committee chaired by a NED, the Trust Executive
Committee, chaired by the Chief Executive, is the principal executive
committee. It leads on implementation of the Trust's clinical, operational and
financial strategy and plans; and ensuring appropriate integration of clinical
services and sites, between clinical and corporate functions and within the
Trust and with external partners.

During the year, the chairs of Board committees reported on their discussions and
drew issues to the attention of the Trust Board as appropriate through Minutes,
written exception reports to each Board meeting held in public and a committee
annual report on compliance with terms of reference.
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Attendance at Trust Board and principal Board committees

Committee Number of Average
meetings attendance rate
B held in 2016/17

Trust Board (Parts 1 and 2) - 25 92%

| Audit and Risk Committee - 4 62%
Quality Assurance Committee - 8 68%

| Nominations and Remuneration Committee | 2 | 88%
Finance and Investment Committee 12 [ 81%

A more detailed breakdown of attendance records by individual Trust Board
members is provided in the Accountability section of the Trust’s Annual Report.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the use of resources

The Trust Board and its assurance committees have a key role in review of the
effective use of resources. The Trust Board retains oversight of the overall business
planning process, budgets and use of staffing resources and establishment. The
Finance and Investment Committee meets monthly and has a key role in review of
investment decisions and monthly financial performance. in 2017/18, the Audit and
Risk Committee focused on the effectiveness of controls in relation to payroll
arrangements, major programme procurement arrangements and staff expense
claims management. The Committee also reported to the Trust Board on its
assurance of risk management arrangements, whistleblowing mechanisms, waiver
processes, and accounting policy. The Quality Assurance Committee provided
assurance to the Trust Board on efficient and effective quality in patient care, with a
focus on improving learning from Never Events, serious incidents and complaints.
The Committee monitored progress against the Trust’s quality improvement plan
and key safety metrics such as pressure ulcers.

Quality Accounts

The Trust’s directors are required under the Health Act 2009 and the National Health
Service {Quality Accounts) Regulations 2010 (as amended) to prepare Quality
Accounts for each financial year. Barts Health NHS Trust produces its Quality
Accounts as an element of its Annual Report.

The accuracy of the Trust’s Quality Account and an assessment of whether this
presents a balanced view of controls in place is provided through internal review;
stakeholder engagement and consultation; and data checking processes as part of
the Trust’s data quality arrangements. The Trust’s External Auditors undertook an
audit of the 2016/17 Quality Account including a deep dive review of selected quality
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indicators and the findings have been taken into account for the production of the
2017/18 Quality Account, which is due to be agreed by the Board in June 2018.

The Trust Board approved the 2016/17 Barts Health Quality Account element of the
Annual Report in June 2017, further to review by the Quality Assurance Committee.

3. The risk and control framework and risk assessment

As designated Accountable Officer, | have overall accountability for risk management
in the Trust. During 2017/18, the Chief Nurse and, following his appointment, the
Director of Corporate Development have led on risk management issues at Board
level.

Capacity to handle risk
The leadership framework for risk management is summarised below:

e The Audit and Risk Committee meets four times a year and oversees the
overall performance of the risk management system. It provides assurance to
the Trust Board that effective governance, risk management and interna!
control systems are in place across the Trust’s activities, including the
development of the Board Assurance Framework and how this is informed by
the high risk register. The Board’s Quality Assurance Committee meets on a
bimonthly basis and monitors, reviews and reports on the quality of services
provided by the Trust. It provides assurance to the Audit and Risk Committee
and the Trust Board that effective arrangements are in place to ensure that
the Trust’s services deliver safe, high quality, patient-centred care. Key risks
are highlighted to and reviewed by the Trust Board both as part of its regular
monitoring of performance and in the context of specific issues that arise.

e The Trust’s Risk Management Committee, which is chaired by the Director of
Corporate Development, provides executive oversight of risk management
issues. The Risk Management Committee meets monthly and is responsible
for ensuring the development and implementation of effective systems and
processes for risk management at each {evel of the Trust and providing
assurance to the Audit and Risk Committee that this is the case.

Risk management training is delivered to staff in accordance with the Trust’'s risk
management training needs analysis. This begins at corporate induction which all
staff attend. There is guidance on the type of courses that staff need to attend and
the frequency of attendance required. Attendance at risk management training is
monitored and feedback given to sites and corporate directorates via a central
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monitoring database which allows corrective action to be taken by management
teams as required.

The Risk and Control framework

The Trust has a comprehensive Risk Management Policy, refreshed and approved
during 2017/18 and this is available to all staff on the Trust’s intranet site. The policy
describes the Trust’s overall risk management approach, responsibilities for risk at
each level of the organisation, the risk management process and the Trust’s risk
identification, evaluation and control system. The latter includes the 5x5 (impact x
likelihood) risk matrix used to evaluate risks in the Trust,

The Risk Management Committee reviews the Trust’s risk register on an
ongoing basis. All new risks with a proposed score of 15 and above {classified
as ‘High’} are reviewed by the Risk Management Committee. The Committee
has also undertaken a rolling review of hospital site and corporate
directorate risks with a score of 12 and above. The Risk Management
Committee reviews all risk register entries with a score of 20 or above at each
meeting.

The Risk Management function (which transferred from the Corporate
Nursing to the Corporate Development directorate during 2017/18) is
focused on integrated risk management — the process of identification,
assessment, analysis and management of risks at every level in the
organisation and the aggregation of results at a corporate level,

For each of the Trust’s sites, the Director of Nursing leads on governance and
risk issues and is responsible for coordinating and embedding risk
management processes within the site, including management of the local
risk register. Site Hospital Management Boards have responsibility for
monitoring, managing and where necessary escalating risks on their risk
registers. Risk training has been undertaken with sites during the year to
help strengthen risk identification, evaluation and monitoring. Staff at all
levels are encouraged to report incidents and record risks on the Trust’s Datix
information systems (with the Trust’s benchmarked incident reporting rate
having improved in 2017/18).

The Director of Corporate Development is the Trust’s Senior Information Risk
Owner (SIRO). Working closely with the Caldicott Guardian, the SIRQ has
been responsible for taking ownership of information risk at Board level and
advising the Chief Executive accordingly.
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Board Assurance Framework

The Board Assurance Framewaork is reviewed by the Risk Management Committee at
each meeting and formally reviewed by the Trust Board at least three times a year.
Risks on the Assurance Framework are assigned both a lead Corporate Director and a
lead Trust Board assurance committee and the respective committees review at
each of their meetings progress against those risks assigned to the committee.

The principal risks on the Trust’s Board Assurance Framework as approved by the
Board at the end of 2017/18 are summarised at Appendix 1. The Board Assurance
Framework is based around the Trust's strategic objectives and identifies the
principal risks to the achievement of those objectives, the key controls in place to
manage those risks and the sources of assurance about the effectiveness of those
controls. It also details some gaps in contro! and assurance in relation to the risks,
including strategic objectives related to quality of care, service delivery, workforee,
finance, infrastructure and information systems, together with actions to address
them. The actions include identifying additional resources, putting in place new
systems, processes, operating procedures and monitoring arrangements,
strengthening project and programme management, and effective working with
partner organisations.

The organisation’s highest scored risks to achievement of its strategic objectives, as
at the end of 2017/18, are included on the Board Assurance Framework and relate
to:
e Emergency care access and flow.
» Achieving Income and Expenditure improvements and delivering Cost
Improvement Plans consistent with the required underlying financial run
rate.

The Board Assurance Framework is updated through both a ‘top down’ assessment
by Directors of key risks and a ‘bottom up’ review of high and significant risks on the
Trust's risk register.

The 2017/18 Internal Audit report on the Board Assurance Framework, in draft at
the point of producing this Annual Governance Statement, concluded a reasonable
assurance rating, identifying recommendations for further work on supporting
processes to map key controls and assurances consistently and its application and
use in resource decision-making. Action will be taken by the Executive to address
the recommendations identified in the audit report once it has been finalised.

25



Barts Health

ANNUAL REPORT 2017/18 - ACCOUNTABILITY REPORT
Counter Fraud

The Trust's Local Counter Fraud service ensures that the annual plan of proactive
work minimises the risk of fraud within the Trust and is fully compliant with NHS
Protect’s Counter Fraud Standards for providers. Preventative measures include
reviewing Trust policies to ensure they are fraud-proof utilising intelligence, best
practice and guidance from NHS Protect. Detection exercises are undertaken where
a known area is at high risk of fraud and the National Fraud Initiative (NFl} data
matching exercise is conducled bi-annually.

Fraud is deterred by publicising proven cases of NHS fraud and staff are encouraged
to report suspicions of fraud through utilising communications, presentations and
fraud awareness literature across the Trust’s sites. The Local Counter Fraud
Specialist liaises with Internal Audit in order to capture any fraud risks from internal
audits undertaken within the Trust. Counter Fraud reports are presented to the
Audit and Risk Committee at each meeting.

External assurance

The Care Quality Commission’s reports following their re-inspections of the Trust
{including its Well Led review) received during 2017/18 demonstrate that some
progress has been made in embedding risk management systems and processes and
the use of risk registers, but further improvement and greater consistency is still
required. This remains a key priority for the hospital sites and for the Barts Health
group as a whole.

Stakeholder involvement

Partners and stakeholders are involved in managing risks which impact on them
through their invalvement in and contributions to many aspects of the work of the
Trust, including for example:

Patients and the public

e The work of the local Healthwatches, Overview and Scrutiny Committees and
Health and Wellbeing Boards.

* Regular meetings of the Trust Board held in public which include patient
stories and the opportunity for patients and members of the public to ask
questions.

* Feedback provided via the Trust’s Patient Advice and Liaison Service and
specific patient representative groups, the National Inpatient Survey {and
other specific national surveys of areas including cancer services and
maternity) and the results of Friends and Family Test surveys.
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Staff
= The adoption of a We Improve quality improvement approach to staff

engagement and staff-led change (adopting successful interventions from

2016/17 activities) which has continued during 2017/18.

e A strong focus on encouraging staff to raise concerns and the web-based
Speak In Confidence system and guardian services.

*  Ward development initiatives including improved information sharing.

o Monitoring of Staff Survey findings, and related executive and senior staff
roadshows and visits to wards and departments.

Partners

e Repgular performance discussions with commissioners, NHS England and NHS
Improvement (NHSI).

o Joint working groups for emergency care and RTT.

o Stakeholder membership of Trust committees and working groups.

e Joint strategic planning with healthcare and academic partners, including
NHSI, NHS England, CCGs, Queen Mary University of London and UCL
Partners.

Compliance issues

Control measures are in place to ensure that all the organisation’s obligations under
equality, diversity and human rights legislation are complied with. This is overseen
by the Trust Board.

As an employer with staff entitled to membership of the NHS Pension scheme,
control measures are in place to ensure all employer obligations contained within
the Scheme regulations are complied with. This includes ensuring that deductions
from salary, employer's contributions and payments in to the Scheme are in
accordance with the Scheme rules, and that member Pension Scheme records are
accurately updated in accordance with the timescales detailed in the Regulations.

The trust has undertaken risk assessments and Carbon Reduction Delivery Plans are
in place in accordance with emergency preparedness and civil contingency
requirements, as based on UKCIP 2009 weather projects, to ensure that this
organisation’s obligations under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation
Reporting requirements are complied with.

The Trust is compliant with registration requirements of the CQC but not fully

compliant with all CQC essential standards of quality and safety. Details of non-
compliance are set out in Section 4.
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Information governance and data security

Information governance and data security risks are managed and controlled within
this policy framework. The Trust is committed to ensuring that it manages all the
information which it holds and processes in an efficient, effective and secure manner
through the application of robust information governance policies and procedures to
support the delivery of high quality patient care. The Information Governance Team
also runs a programme of unannounced ward and department spot checks.

The Trust’s self-assessment against the information governance toolkit standards
was informed by the routine annual internal audit review of the evidence with an
overall score of 74%.

The Trust has implemented the national Information Governance Assurance
Programme, with a specific focus on the handling of person identifiable data. A data
transfer database is in place, person identifiable data flows are reviewed and
arrangements are in place to ensure their security, and the risk register has been
reviewed to ensure that it appropriately reflects information governance risks. The
processes and controls in place have been monitored by the Trust’s Information
Governance Committee. The Trust recordedtwo serious untoward data security
breaches during the year which have been reported to the Information
Commissioner's Office (ICO). Further details on data security and disruption
associated with data losses, including a ransomware attack are provided in Section 4.

Elective waiting time data

During September 2014, the Trust Board concluded that the quality of Referral to
Treatment (RTT) waiting time data was insufficient to continue national reporting.
Since then the Trust has been engaged in a variety of actions designed to return the
Trust to national reporting as well as achieving compliance against the national RTT
waiting time standard. As a part of this process, the Trust has undertaken a pathway
validation exercise, to validate waiting time data recorded for all patients currently
waiting for treatment. The Trust has also engaged in a project designed to identify
the sources of poor quality data, followed by meaningful intervention designed to
address underlying issues.

The Trust Board agreed, following a series of nationally prescribed checks, of the
integrity of the data to resume RTT national reporting in 2018/19. As national
reporting resumes, waiting list data and underpinning electronic logic will be subject
to regular spot-checks as well as biannual full data quality reviews and annual
internal audits.
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Update on significant control issues in 2016/17

The Trust identified a humber of significant control issues in its Annual Governance
Statement for 2016/17. In 2016/17, the Trust reported 12 Never Events. Following
work to support shared learning across the Trust sites, with a focus on addressing
any recurring themes {which had previously included incidents in dentistry and in
nasogastric tube management), the overall number of Never Events reduced to 8 in
2017/18. Further work will focus on reducing this further in 2018/19, including the
development of tailored surgical safety checklists as part of the National Safety
Standards for Invasive Procedures programme. Updates on all other 2016/17
significant control issues are provided in Section 4 below.

4. Review of effectiveness of risk management and internal control

As Accountable Officer, | have responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the
system of internal control. My review is informed in a number of ways.

The Head of Internal Audit provides me with an opinion on the overall arrangements
for gaining assurance through the Assurance Framework and on the controls
reviewed as part of Internal Audit’'s work. The Head of internal Audit Opinion for
2017/18 concludes that, for the systems that have heen reviewed, [reasonable]
assurance can be given that controls are generally sound and operating effectively.
However, it notes that there are defects in design or inconsistency of application
which may impact on the effectiveness of some controls to eliminate or mitigate
risks to the achieverment of some objectives.

My review has also been informed by:

o Executives and managers within the organisation, who have responsibility for
the development and maintenance of the system of risk management and
internal control.

e Performance against national and local standards and segmentation under
the Single Operating Framewaork.

e The findings of inspections of services at St Bartholomew's, Whipps Cross
University, Newham University and The Royal London Hospitals (as well as
the Trust as a whole and ‘Well Led’ assessment} by the Care Quality
Commission (CQC)as published during 2017/18.

¢ The Trust’s ongoing assessment of compliance with the CQC's Essential
Standards of Quality and Safety.
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o The work of Internal Audit through the year, with coverage of the audit plan
determined by a risk-based assessment. Details of the Internal Audit reports
completed during 2017/18 and the basis for the overall Head of Internal
Audit Opinion - that a reasonable level of assurance on the Trust’s systems of
controls can be gained - are set out in his report to the Audit and Risk
Committee. This identified that 14 audit reports provided significant or
reasonable assurance while 4 provided limited assurance. One of the
finalised audit reports, relating to Cerner Millennium disaster recovery
arrangements, contained findings that Internal Audit regard as significant
control issues recommending disclosure in this Annual Governance
Statement.

¢ The outcomes of the Trust's clinical audit programme, the effectiveness of
which has improved during the course of the year.

e The results of External Audit’s work on the Trust’s annual accounts and local
tailored performance management reviews.

o Patient and staff surveys and feedback and other sources of external scrutiny
and accreditation including clinical peer review arrangements.

| have been advised on the implications of the result of my review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control by the Risk Management Committee
and the Audit and Risk Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure
continuous improvement of the system is in place. Key roles have been as follows:

o The Board has played a key role in reviewing risks to the delivery of the
Trust’s performance objectives through monthly monitoring and
discussion of the Integrated Performance Report and detailed financial nd
quality and safety reports, and through Board and committee reporting
on progress against other strategic objectives.

e The Audit and Risk Committee has overseen the effectiveness of the risk
management arrangements. The Audit and Risk Committee has placed a
focus this year on workforce arrangements including employment checks
and temporary staffing controls.

e The Risk Management Committee has reviewed the Trust’s risk register

and the Board Assurance Framework and monitored key clinical and non-
clinical risks highlighted by Trust committees and individual managers.
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o Executive managers have ensured that key risks have been highlighted
and monitored within their functional areas and the necessary action
taken to address them.

s Both Internal and External Audit have provided scrutiny and assurance in
relation to governance and control arrangements across a wide range of
the Trust's activities.

The Trust has identified the following significant control issues and the actions which
have been or are being taken to address them.

CQC essential standards of quality and safety

Barts Health is registered with the Care Quality Commission (CQC) without
conditions. The Trust was placed in quality special measures in March 2015 in
response to a CQC inspection which rated Whipps Cross University Hospital as
‘inadequate’ and imposed four Warning Notices, combined with Trust-wide
challenges in meeting national waiting time standards and the financial position. A
comprehensive quality improvement plan, titled Safe and Compassionate, was
developed and approved by the Trust Board in September 2015, and refreshed in
September 2016, with the latest iteration, Safe and Compassionate 3: getting to
good and outstanding launched in March 2018.

Significant progress has been made during 2017/18 against the identified priorities
and CQC re-inspections of services at Whipps Cross University Hospital in May 2017,
The Royal London Hospital in June 2017 and Newham University Hospital in July
2017 confirmed improvements and upgraded ratings at each site. During the year, a
‘good’ rating was achieved for services at 5t Bartholomew’s Hospital following its
inspection in May 2017, with an overall improvement in the rating for the Trust from
'inadequate’ to 'requires improvement'. Further work is planned as part of a
refreshed Safe and Compassionate 3: getting to good and outstanding quality
improvement plan to assure progress against any remaining 'must do' reguirements
from previous inspection reports, to secure improved ratings for three domains
within surgical services that remain rated as ‘inadequate’ and to reflect a revised
level of ambition for excellence in clinical service delivery.

Data security and cyber attack

On 20 April 2017, the Trust suffered a loss of 9 disks in ane of the main Storage Area
Networks, resulting in a lengthy process to reinstate systems by restoring via back-
ups.

On 12 May 2017, the Trust declared a major incident following a ransomware attack

(Wannacry ransomware]} that affected many organisations across the world. As a
result, ICT networks and key clinical and information systems reliant on Microsoft
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operating systems were shut down, with an immediate impact on operational
activity. The vast majority of the Trust’s clinical systems and file shares were restored
by 25 May 2017 (with most completed earlier than this) and all Trust PCs were swept
and restored subsequently. During the affected period the Trust cooperated fully
with instructions from NHS Digital and other government agencies.

The overall impact of these incidents included significant immediate operational
disruption, delays to treatment time and costs associated with loss of clinical activity
and patient treatment income. Major incident processes during the incident placed
an overriding emphasis on assessing and addressing potential quality and safety
risks. The Trust adopted an established harm review process methodology to check
the impact of delays in treatment arising from the cyber attack (with the exercise
confirming low levels of risks to patients).

Overall, the Trust has invested approximately £12m within 13 months in overhauling
its ICT networks, data storage and PC infrastructure, eliminating use of outmoded
operating systems and mitigating risks of data losses and cyber attacks of this
severity in future.

During the year, there were two serious untoward incidents involving personal data
which were reported to the Information Commissioner in accordance with national
guidance. The ICO decided not to take any further action in relation to both of the
incidents.

The first case related to an ocular coherent tomography (OCT) machine going
missing from the department. This machine had a hard drive with minimal patient
information on it. An investigation concluded that the loss was unlikely to have
arisen from a theft. The second case related to a portable ultrasound machine being
stolen; in this case, the machine had minimal patient information on it.

The incidents were fully investigated and the resulting recommendations
implemented. The Trust continues to take steps to ensure the secure management
of patient and staff information. This has been facilitated through enhancements to
our information security systems and processes, embedding clear policies and
procedures in our staff’'s daily work and ensuring that staff receive appropriate
information governance training. As at 29 March 2018, 86% of staff had received
information governance training and passed a test of comprehension in the past 12
months.

National performance standards (emergency care, diagnostics and 62-day cancer
waiting times)

The Trust underachieved against the national standard for emergency care waiting
times in 2017/18. Attendances rose significantly during the vyear, with
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unprecedented levels of demand experienced during winter. During this period, the
Trust’s performance benchmarked well when compared with peers, with recognition
of significant commitment of Trust staff and acknowledgement that winter plan
arrangements had worked effectively. Action plans and trajectories have been
agreed with commissioners and regulators to improve performance in early 2018/19.

The Trust's previously strong track record on performance against the diagnostic 6-
week wait standard and cancer 62-day waiting time standard was significantly
affected by the ICT disruption highlighted in the above section, with the related
targets not met consistently throughout 2017/18. The Trust returned to compliance
with the diagnostic standard from December 2017 onwards, and with all cancer
standards from August 2017 onwards (excepting one month where cancer screening
performance dipped below the national target).

18 Weeks RTT data quality

As described above, the Trust suspended national reporting of 18 Weeks RTT
performance in autumn 2014 due to data quality issues resulting from significant
difficulties associated with the implementation of the Cerner Millennium electronic
patient record system at Whipps Cross and compounded by the failure of an RTT
validation database. An extensive work programme continues with partners to
imprave data quality and allow the Trust to recommence national reporting as soon
as possible. [Following its meeting on 9 May 2018, the Trust Board formally
confirmed its decision to recommence reporting against this standard with
immediate effect].

Financial performance

The Trust continued to face financial challenges in 2017/18, with ICT disruption and
unprecedented emergency demand during winter having an impact on patient
treatment income from non-emergency activity. A further key driver of the Trust’s
deficit was underachievement of CIP savings on non-pay, primarily associated with
drugs and supplies costs inflation. The Trust reported a deficit of [£114.9m] for
2017/18, in line with the deficit control total target set by NHS Improvement. The
Trust’s objectives remain focused on exiting financial special measures during
2018/19 and this will require evidenced progress against a challenging financial plan
for 2018/19.

MHRA reinspection of manufacturing facilities

In November 2017, the Medicines Healthcare Regulatory Agency undertook an
inspection of the Trust's facilities for pharmacy and radiopharmacy manufacturing, in
accordance with Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP) standards. Although no formal
regulatory action was taken, the inspection team found insufficient progress against
recommendations made at a prior visit and an escalation meeting was held in
January 2018. To prioritise quality improvements, the Trust has engaged a series of
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measures to assure progress against an agreed action plan. A follow-up visit by the
MHRA is anticipated in October 2018.

Clinical information system disaster recovery

Internal Audit’s limited assurance review of a clinical information system disaster
recovery process identified a gap in risk assessing disaster recovery process options
at the time of a move from a national to locally managed contract {(a number of
years ago). The Audit and Risk Committee noted a reducing need for traditional
disaster recovery arrangements where cloud and other technological advances
allowed the prioritisation of repairs during downtime for business continuity
purposes (with other trusts using this clinical system adopting the same approach as
Barts Health). Audit recommendations have been followed up by the informatics
team and the current level of risk is considered to be low.

5. Conclusion

My review has established that Barts Health NHS Trust has a reasonable system of
internal controls that supports the achievement of the trusts policies, aims and
objectives. The below significant internal control issues {detailed in the above
section)have associated plans to ensure that these have been or are being resolved:

o CQC essential standards of quality and safety.

e Data security and cyber attack.

e National performance standards (emergency care, diagnostics and 62-day
cancer waiting times).

18 Weeks RTT data quality.

Financial performance.

MHRA reinspection of manufacturing facilities.

Clinical information system disaster recovery.

During 2017/18, the Trust has further embedded its group model and supporting
governance arrangements at corporate, site and clinical board level to further
strengthen the Trust’s systems and processes for controls and assurance, and
support the delivery of the Trust’s quality and financial improvement plans.

Alwen Williams CBE
Chief Executive
Barts Health NHS Trust 23 May 2018
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Appendix 1: Board Assurance Framework - principal risks at 31 March 2018

Board assurance framework - risk entry

1. A failure 1o learn from Never Events, serious incidenls and complainls adversely impacts on quality and
safety (A2) (CMO)

2, Failure to deliver change in inadequate rated services or embedding Safe and Compassionale
improvements impairs the organisational culture and delivery of best praclice standards (A1) (CN)

3 A failure 1o deliver 18 Weeks Referral to Trealment Time recovery plans impacts on pattent experience and
risks patient ham (A3) (DCO)

4.Failure 1o address patient flow and capacity issues impacts on emergency care access and palient
experience {A3) (DCO)

§. The aim lo exil financial special measures is impaired by a) failure to achieve 1&E improvements (inciuding
securing assel receipts) and b) delivery of CIPs consistent with the required underlying position/run rate. (B1)
{CFQ)

6. PFI costs {outside the scope of the Trust's savings programme) impact on fong term financial sustainability
{B1) (CFO)

7. Failure to implemenl the clinical and arganisational stralegy impacts on sustainability of access, performance
and quality of services: and the development of the organisational mode!. (C6) (DS)

8. Delivery of recruitment and retention objeclives are impaired by confinued high vacancy rales in hard-to-
recruil speciallies/sites and lhe impact of Brexit {D6) (DWD)

9. A failure to effeclively communicale across a large organisation lo lead and embed consistent values
behaviours and accouniability. (D2) (DWD)

10. Risk of not delivering workforce and patient equalities and inclusion goals impact on delivery of key
objectives {D4) (DWD)

11. Failure lo successfully implement clinical boards, networks and matrix working (D1) (DS)

12. Failure lo address ICT infrastruciure remediation, business conlinuity arrangements and interdependencies
(E5) (DCEQ)

13a. Capital funding constraints prevent adequate invesiment in medical equipment to support effective and
limely care (E1) (DCO)

13b. Capital funding constraints prevent adequate investment in estales improvements and backlog
maintenance, including fire safely, to support effective and limely care (E1) (DCEQ)

14, Clinical and operational pressures adversely impact on organisational focus on research agenda (F1)
(CMO}

Lead committee roles (no colour = reserved to the Trust Board)

. r?:"' I:T' Finance and
| Auditandnsk Qually assurance Invesiment
s ;',_l commiltee commttee Commiites
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Staff Policies

Key workforce policies are held on the Trust's We Share intranet site with
accompanying guidance, support and forms to assist staff using these.

These policies include a Human Rights, Equality and Diversity policy and
Recruitment and Selection policy which set out the process for ensuring fair
employment, training and career development opportunities for individuals with
protected characteristics.

Remuneration policies

For the purposes of this report, this section relates to subslantive officers of the
Trust whose remuneration is not governed by national policy, such as Agenda for
Change terms and conditions - and specifically applies to voting and non-voting
Trust Board members.

The Secretary of State for Health determines nationally the remuneration of the
chairman and non executive directors, with terms of appointment and renewal
determined by NHS Improvement.

Appointment and removal, remuneration, allowances and terms and conditions of
office for executive directors (and the remuneration, allowances and terms and
conditions of office for other defined senior officers) is determined by the Trust's
nominations and remuneration committee with due regard to national guidance.
Executive director performance against organisational and individual objectives is
monitored through the formal appraisal process.






Sickness absence data

Sickness shsence data. .~ 2017/18 2016/17.
Number Numbar
Total days lost 10931 105678
Total slall years 14902 14566
Averages working days losl 7.34 7.26
Early,Retirements on ill health grounds 201718 2016/17.
B : T Number Number
Number of persons retired early on ill health grounds 6 4
£000s £000s
Total additional pensions liabililies accrued in the year 111,29 364




Consultancy expenditure

Operating expenses 201718 2016117
£000s £000s
Consullancy services 5,898 12,107




Off-payroll Engagements

For all off-payroll engagements as of 31 March 2018, {or more than £220 per day and that last longer
than six months:

Number

Number of existing engagements as ol 31 March 2018 0
Of which, the number thal have existed:

for less than one year at the lime of reporting 0

for between one and two years at the lime ol reporling 0

for between 2 and 3 years al the lime of reporling 1]

for belween 3 and 4 years al the lime of reporling 0

for 4 or more years at the lime of reporting 0

For ali new off-payroll engagements belween 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018, for more than £220 per
day and that last longer than six months:

GEHET A VE 3 D Number’
Number of new engagements, or those thal reached six moenths in duration, belween 1 April 0
2017 and 31 March 2018
Number of new engagements which include contraclual clauses giving the Barls Heallh NHS 0
Trust the right to request assurance in relation to income lax and National Insurance obligations
Number for whom assurance has been requested 0
Of which: ]
assurance has been received N/A
assurance has not been received N/A
engagements lerminated as a result of assurance not being received N/A

For any off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or, senior officials with significant financia!
responsibility, between 1 April 2017 and 31 March 2018

A, e A e R T TR I L T R R | EINuUmber
Number of off-payroll engagements of board members, and/or senior OfflCEI'S W|th sugnlhcant 0
financial responsibilily, during the financial year
Total no. of individuals on payroll and off-payroll that have been deemed "board members,
and/or, senior officials with significant financial responsibility”, during the financial year. This 0
figure should include both on payroll and ofi-payroll engagements
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Staff composilion (as at 31st March 2018)

[ Gender Headcount %!

Female 11,612 72%
Male 4,443 28%
Total 16,055 100%
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Senlor manager numbers by band

Salary bands

Number of
senior
managers

Less than £5,000

4

£5,000 - £10,000

£10.001 - £15,000

£15,001 - £20,000

5
i
1

£20,001 - £25,000

£25,001 - £30,000

£30.001 - £35,000

£35,001 - £40,000

£40,001 - £45,000

£45,001 - £50,000

£50,001 - £55,000

£55,001 - £60,000

£60,001 - £65,000

£65,001 - £70,000

£70,000 - £75,000

£75.001 - £80,000

£80,001 - £85,000

£85,001 - £90,000

£00,001 - £95,000

£95,001 - £100,000

£100,001 - £105,000

£105,001 - £110,000

£110,001 - £115,000

£115,001 - £120,000

£120,001 - £125.000

£125,001 - £130,000

£130,001 - £135,000

£135,001 - £140,000

£140,001 - £145,000

£145,001 - £150,000

£150,001 - £155,000

£155,001 - £160,000

£160,001 - £165,000

£165,001 - £170,000

£170,001 - £175,000

£175,001 - £180,000

£1680,001 - £185,000

£185,001 - £190.000

£190,001 - £195,000

£195,001 - £200,000

£200,001 - £205,000

£205,001 - £210,000

£210,001 - £215,000

£215,001 - £220,000

£220,001 - £225,000

£225,001 - £230,000

£230,001 - £235,000

£235,001 - £240,000

£240,001 - £245,000

£245,001 - £250,000

£250,001 - £255,000

£255,001 - £260,000

£260,001 - £265,000

£265,001 - £270,000

£270.001 - £275,000

(£275,001 - £280,000

£280,000 - £285,000

>£285,001

[Total

21




Fair Pay {subject to audit)

Reporting bodies are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid
director in their organisation and the median remuneralion of the organisation’s workforce,

The banded remuneration of the highest paid director in Barts Health NHS Trust in the financial year 2017/18
was £240k to £245k (2016/17, £240 1o £245). This was 7.1 times (2016/17, 7.1} the median remuneration of
the worldorce, which was £34k (2016/17 £34k).

In ZUL//18, no employees receved remuneration In exXcess of the NIghest patg director (s was the same in
2016/17). Remuneration ranged from the bands £15k-£20k Lo £240k-£245k (2016/17 £15-£20k to £240%-
Fr4a510

lotal FeMUnNeraton nciuaes salary, non-consoldatea perrormance-relatea pay, benents In KIng, Dut Nog
severance payments. It does not include employer pension contributions and the cash equivalent transfer

vabho af nonrinne
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Barts Health NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2017/18

Statement of the Chief Executive's Responsibilities as the Accountable Officer of the Trust

The Chief Executive of NHS Improvement, in exercise of powers conlerred on the NHS Trust
Development Authority, has designated that the Chief Executive should be the Accountable Officer of
the trusl. The relevant responsibililies of Accountable Officers are set oul in the NHS Trust Accountable
Oificer Memorandum. These include ensuring that:

lhere are elleclive management systems in place to safeguard public funds and assels and
assist in the implemenlation of corporate governance;

value for money is achieved from the resources available to the frust;

the expenditure and income of the trust has been applied to the purposes intended by
Parliament and conform to the authorilies which govern them:;

effective and sound financial management systems are in place; and

annual statutory accounls are prepared in a format direcled by the Secretary of Slate lo give
a true and fair view of the stale of affairs as al the end of the financial year and the Income
and expenditure, recognised gains and losses and cash flows for the year.

To the besl of my knowledge and beliel, | have properly discharged the responsibilities set oul in my
letter of appoiniment as an Accountable Olficer.

&1L avs jos{

Chief Execulive Date
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Barts Health NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2017/18

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in Respect of the Accounts

The direclors are required under the Nalional Health Service Acl 2006 to prepare accounts for each
financial year. The Secretary of State, with the approval of HM Treasury, directs that these accounts
give a lrue and fair view of the slate of alfairs of the trust and of the income and expendilure, recognised
gains and losses and cash flows for the year. In preparing those accounts, directors are required fo:

apply on a consislenl basis accounling policies laid down by the Secretary of State with the
approval of the Treasury;

make judgements and estimates which are reasonable and prudent;

slate whether applicable accounting slandards have been followed, subject to any material
deparlures disclosed and explained in the accounls.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose wilh seasonable
accuracy al any time the financial position of the trust and to enable them to ensure that the accounts
comply with requirements outlined In the above mentioned direction of the Secrelary of State. They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the trust and hence for taking reasonable sleps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularilies.

The directors confirm to the bes! of their knowledge and belief they have complied with the above
requirements in preparing the accounts.

By order of the Board

& Usaun, 23)es [221%

Chief Executive Date

Zﬂ%»m/{'m'vt 23 /':a‘S /2018

Chief Finance Officer Date
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Barts Health NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 201718

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Directors of Barts Health NHS Trust

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Oplinion

We have audited the financial statements of Barts Health NHS Trust {the ‘Trust’) for the year ended 31
March 2018. The financial statements comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statement
of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to
the financial statements, including the summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and the Department of Health
and Social Care Group Accounting Manual 2017-18 and the requirements of the National Health Service
Act 2006.

In our opinion the financial statements:

* give a true and {air view of the financial position of the Trust as at 31 March 2018 and of its
expenditure and income for the year then ended: and

* have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and adapted by the Department of Health and Social
Care Group Accounting Manual 2017-18; and

* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the National Health Service Act 2006,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) {i5As (UK)} and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described In the Auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Who we are reporting to

This report is made solely to the Directors of the Trust, as a body, in accordance with Part 5 of the Local
Audit and Accountability Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
Trust's Directors those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume respansibility to anyone
other than the Trust and the Trust's Directors, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed.

Material uncertainty related to going concern

We draw attention to note 1.1 in the financial statements, concerning the Trust’s ability to continue as a
going concern, which indicates that the Trust has submitted a financial plan for 2018/19 to NHS
Improvemnent that delivers a £64.4 million deficit after delivery of a £61.9 million savings programme.
The Trust has also submitted a provisional financial plan for 2019/20 to NHS Improvement that delivers a
£26.4 million deficit after delivery of a £65.0 million savings programme. As stated in note 1.1, the Trust
Is reliant on £7.0 million of non-recurrent savings during 201819 in order to achieve the 2018/19 control
total.
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Barts Health NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2017/18
Independent Auditor's Report to the Directors of Barts Health NHS Trust

The provisional financial plan includes a requirement for up to £104.9 million of cash support for 2018719,
of which £51.7 million is required to maintain revenue cash flows and £53.2 million is required lo support
essential capital investment. NHS Improvement has not, as at the date of our report, confirmed the
suppaort for 2018/19 and 2019/20. These events or conditions, along with the other matters explained in
note 1.1, indicale that a malerial uncertainty exists that may cast significant douht about the Trust's ability
{o continte as a going cancern. Qur opinion is not modified in respect of this maltter.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the financial stalements and our auditor’s report thereon, Our
apinion on the financial stalemenls does nol cover the other information and, except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in our reporl, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
stalements or our knowledge obtained in the course of our work, including that gained through work in
relation to the Trust’s arrangements for securing value for money through economy, efficiency and
effectiveness In the use of its resources, or otherwise appears ta be materially misstated. If we identify
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether
there is a material misstatement in the financial siatements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the wark we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Other information we are required to report an by exception under the Code of Audit Practice

Under the Code of Audit Practice published by the National Audit Office on behalf of the Comptraller and
Auditor General (the Code of Audit Practice) we are required to consider whether the Annual Governance
Statement does not comply with the guidance issued by NHS Improvement or is misteading or inconsistent
with the information of which we are aware from our audit. We are not required to consider whether the
Annual Governance Statement addresses all risks and controls or that risks are satisfactority addressed by
internal controls.

We have nothing Lo report in this regard.

Opinion on other matters required by the Code of Audit Practice

In our opinion:

* the parts of the Remuneration Repart and Staff Report to be audited have been properly prepared in
accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, as interpreted and adapted by the Department
of Health and Sociz! Care Group Accounting Manual 2017-18 and the requirements of the National Health
Service Act 2006; and

= based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and our knowledge
of the Trust gained through our work in relation to the Trust's arrangements for securing economy,
effictency and effectiveness in its use of resources, the other information published together with the
financial staternents in the annual report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Directors of Barls Health NHS Trust
Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Code of Audit Praclice we are required to report to you if:

* we have reported a matter in the public interest under Section 24 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Acl 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of the audit; or

* we have referred a matter to the Secrelary of State under Section 30 of the Local Audit and Accountability
Act 2014 because we had reason Lo believe that the Trust, or an officer of the Trust, was about to make, or
had made, a decision which involved or would involve the body incurring unlawlul expenditure, or was
about to take, or had begun Lo ake a course of action which, if followed to its conclusion, would be unlawful
and likely to cause a loss or deficiency; or

* we have made a wrilten recommendation to the Trust under Section 24 of the Local Audit and
Accounlability Act 2014 in the course of, or at the conclusion of 1he audit.

We have nothing Lo report in respect of the above matters except on 23 May 2018 we referred a matter to
the Secretary of State under Section 30(b) of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 in relation to Barls
Health NHS Trust’s breach of its break-even duty for the three-year period ending 31 March 2018,

Responsibilities of the Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Director's Responsibilities in Respect of the Accounts, the
Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in the form and on the basis set out
in the Accounts Directions, for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and far such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the poing
concern basis of accounting unless the Trust lacks funding for its continued existence or when policy
decisions have been made that affect the services provided by the Trust.

The Audit and Risk Commitiee is Those Charged with Governance.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are 10 abtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and {o issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nol a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the econamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms
part of our auditor’s repart.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Directors of Barts Health NHS Trust

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements — Conclusion on the Trust's arrangements for
securing economy, efficiency and effecliveness in its use of resources

Adverse conclusion

On the basis of our work, having regard to the guidance issued by the Compiroller & Auditor General in
Novernber 2017, because of the significance of the matters described in the basis for adverse conclusion
seclion of our report, we are not salisfied thal, in all significant respects Barls Health NHS Trust put in place
proper arrangements for securing economy, efiiciency and effecliveness in ils use of resources for the year
ended 31 March 2018

Basls for adverse conclusion

Our review of the Trusl's arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in ils use of
resources identified the following matters:

* The Trust incurred an adjusted retained deficit of £108.8 million in 2017/18;

* The Trust's medium term financial plan shows a deficit contro! tolal of £64.4 million for 2016/19 prior {o
receipl of Provider Sustainabilily Funding. This plan is based on the Trust achieving: a challenging cost
improvemenl programme of £61.9 million; an increase of £28 million in Palient Trealmeant income; £60 million
in profil from disposal of assels; and all the financial and operational conditions to atiain £55 million of
Provider Suslainability Funding;

+ The Trust remains in the Department of Health and Social Care's Financial Speciat Measures programme
due lo the size of the current deficit; and

* The Care Quality Commission (CQC) review of the Trust's Whipps Cross University Hospital sile in July
2016 raled services provided by the hospital as “inadequale”. The CQC also inspected the Trust's Rayal
London Hospilal site in July 2016 and its Newham General Hospita! site in November 2016, and raled both
hospilals as “requires improvement™. The CQC has raled the Trust as “requires improvement” averall,
highlighling significant concerns in safely, effectiveness, responsiveness and leadership,

* Due to the level of concerns raised across the Trusl in previous CQC inspections, the Trust was placed in
special measures on 16 March 2015 by NHS Improvement. The Trust remains in special measures.

These malters arise primarily due to weaknesses in the Trust's arrangements for setling a susiainable budget
with sufficient capacity 1o absorb emerging cost pressures due lo the current configuration of services and
responding to service delivery issues raised by requlators.

These issues are evidence of weaknesses in proper arrangements for planning finances effeclively to support
the sustainable delivery of strategic priorities and maintaining slatutory functions, and understanding and using
appropriate financial and performance information to support informed decision making and performance
management.

Responsibitities of the Accountable Officer

As explained in the Stalement of the Chief Execulive's Responsibilities, as the Accountable Officer of the
Trust, the Accounlable Officer is responsible for putting in place proper arrangemenis for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of the Trust's resources.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the Direclors of Barts Health NHS Trust

Auditoi’s responsibilities for the review of the Trust’s arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in its use of resources

We are required under Section 21{3)(c) and Schedule 13 paragraph 10{2} of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014
to be satisfied that the Trust has made proper arrangements for securing economy, efliciency and effectiveness in its
use of resources and to report where we have not been able to salisfy ourselves that it has done so. We are not
required to consider, nor have we considered, whelher all aspects of the Trust's arrangements for SECuring economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources are operating effectively.

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the guidance on the
specified criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General in November 2017, as to whether in all significant
respects, the Trust had proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed decisions and deployed resources to
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. The Comptroller and Auditor General
determined this criterion as that necessary for us Lo consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves
whether the Trust put in place proper arrangements for securing economy, efliciency and effectiveness in its use of
resources for the year ended 31 March 2018, and to report by exception where we are not satisfied,

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice. Based on our risk assessment, we undertook such
work as we considered necessary to be salisfied that \he Trust has put in place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectivenass in its use of resources.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements - Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of Barts Health NHS Trust in accordance with
the requirements of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 and the Code of Audit Practice.

Pacl q'racﬁy

Paut Grady
Engagement Lead

for and on behalf of Grant Thoraton UK LLP
30 Finsbury Square
London

EC2A 1AG

24 May 2018
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

2017118 2016117
Note £000 £000
Operating income from palient care aclivilies a1 1,289,810 1,266,131
Olher operaling income 4.4 212,916 222,702
QOperaling expenses 5.1 {1.550.806) (1.540,502)
Operating surplus/{deficit} from continuing operations {38,080) {51,669)
Finance income 9 892 129
Finance expenses 10 (71,192) (64,727)
PDC dividends payable - &
Net finance costs {70,300) (64,598)
Other gains / (losses) 11 B1 7.130
Deficit for the year from continving operations {108,299) {109,137}
Deficit for the year {108,299) {109,137)
Other comprehensive income
Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:
Impairments (2,742) (22,229)
Revaluations 113,056 4,450
Other reserve movements - 1.178
Total comprehensive income far the period 2,015 (125,738)
Financial Performance for the year
Relained decificit {or the year (108,299) (109,137)
Impairments (excluding #FRIC 12 impairmenls) 1,730 40,396
Adjuslments in respecl of donated gov't grant asset reserve elimination (1.794) (740)
Remove impacl of 1617 STF post accounts reallocalion {419) 0
Adjusted retained deficit (108,782} (69,481}
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Barts Health NHS Trust - Annunl Accounts 2017/18

Statement of Financial Position as at 31st March 2018

31 March 31 March

2018 2017
Nole £oo0 €000
Non-curren! assels
Intangible assels 12 583 B96
Properly, plant and equipment 13 1,318,840 1,223,712
Trade and other receivables 4,971 3,009
Tolal non-current assels 1,324,394 1,227,017
Current assets
Inventories 15 27,408 29,695
Trade and other receivables 16 213,979 166,045
Cash and cash equivalenis 17 3.024 3,316
Total current assets 244,411 199,056
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 18 {158,732}  (132,775)
Borrowings 19 (26,184) (26,027)
DH capital loan 19 (118,062) {3.869)
Pravisions 21 (2.890) (2,113}
Other liabilities 18.2 {18.009) (18,821)
Tolal current liabilities {(323,877)  (183,605)
Total nssets less current lishilities 1,244,928 1,242,468
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 19 (1,017,271) (1,043,376)
CH loan 21 (310,933)  (289,095)
Provisions 7 (14,673) {15,377}
Total nan-current liabilities (1,342,877} {1,347,848)
Total assels employed {97,949) {105,380)
Financed by
Public dividend capital 327,050 321,634
Revalualion reserve 267,389 157,075
Income and expenditure reserve {692,388) _ (584,089)
Total taxpayers' equity {97,949)  {105,380)

The notes on pages 13 1o 55 form part of these accounts.

The financial statements on pages 9 lo 12 were approved by the Board on 23rd May 2018 and signed
on its behall by

Chief Executive Date

Page 10



Barts Hoolth NHS Trust - Annual Accaunts 20917/18

Staterment of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2018

income and

Public dlvidend Revaluation expenditure
capltal reserve reserve Tatal
Eoco £000 £000 £000
Taxpayers' equlty at 1 April 2017 - brought forward 321,634 167,075 {584,089) {105,380)
Surplusfidelicit) for the year - - {108,299) (108,299}
Impainments - (2.742) - (2,742)
Revaluations - 113,056 - 113,056
Publie dividend capilal received 5416 - - 5,416
Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2018 327,050 267,389 {692,288) (97,949)

Slatement of Changes In Equity for the year ended 31 March 2017

Taxpayers’ aquity at 1 April 2016 - brought forward 306,535 173,677 (474,953) 5,259
Surplusi(deficil) for lhe year - - (109,137) {109,137)
Impairmenls - {22,229} - {22,229)
Revalualions - 4,450 - 4,450
Public dvidend capilat received 15,099 - - 15,099
Olher reserve movemenls - 1,177 1 1,178
Taxpayers' equity at 31 March 2017 321,634 157,075 {584,089) {105,360)

Information on reserves

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a lype of public seclor equily finance based on the excess of assels over Eabilities at the lime of
establishment of he predecessor NHS omganisalion. Additional PDC may aiso be issued to lrusis by the Depadment of Health and
Soclal Care. A charge, refleciing the cosl of eapital ulilised by the lrust, is payable lo the Depariment of Health and Social Care as the

pubtic dividend capilal dividend.

Revaluation reserve

Increases in assel values arising from revaluations are recognised in the revaiuation reserve, except where, and o the exienl that,
they reverse impairmens previously recognised in operaling expenseas, in which case they are recognised in operaling income
Subsequent downward movements in asset valuations are charged lo the revalualion reserve fo the exlent Ihal a previous gain was
recognised unless the downward movemen! represents a clear consumplion of economic benefil or a raduclion in service potential

Income and expenditlure reserve
The balance of this is the accumulaled surpluses and deficits of the NHS Trust
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Statement of Cash Flows

Cash Flows from Operaling Activities
Operaling surplus / (delicit)

Non-cash income and expense:
Depreciation and amortisation
Nel impairments
Income recognised in respect of capital donation
Amortisation of PF| deferred credit

S

Non-cash movemenils in on-SofFP pension liabilily
(Increase) / decrease in receivables and other assets

(Increase) / decrease in inventories

Increase / (decrease) in payables and other liabillies

Increase / (decrease) in provisions

Net cash generated from / (used in) operaling activities

Cash Flows from Investing Aclivities
Interesi received

Purchase ol properly, plant, equipment and investment property
Sales of property, plant, equipment and invesiment properly

Recelpt of cash donations to purchase capilal assels

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activilies

Cash Flows from Financing Actlivities
Public dividend capital received

Movement on loans from the Depariment of Heallh and Social Care
Capilal element of PFI, LIFT and other service concession paymenls

Other inleres| paid
PDC dividend (paid) / refunded

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities

Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brough! forward

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - restated
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March
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Note

5.1
5.1
4.4

2017118 201617
£000 £000
(38,080)  (51,669)
49,361 51,374
1,730 40,396
(6,795) (6,036)
(53,421)  (34,857)
2,287 {7.825)
31,261 (38,595)
33 (1,326)
(13,624) __ (48,538)
892 129
(35,986)  (42,104)
3,677 139
- 324
{31,4177) __ (41,512)
5416 15,099
136,030 155,529
(26,501)  (23,053)
(70,196)  (62,435)
2 5,009
43,749 90,149
(292) 99
3,316 3,217
3,316 3,217
3,024 3,316
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e

1.1

Notes to the Accounts
Basis of preparation

The Secrelary of State has directed that the financial stalements of the frust shalt meel the accounting
tequirements of the Department of Heallh and Social Care Group Accounting Manuat {GAM), which shall be
agreed with HM Treasury. Consequenlly, the foltowing financial siatements have been prepared in
accordance with the GAM 2017/18 issued by the Department of Heallh and Social Care. The accounling
policies contained in the GAM follow International Financial Reporting Standards to (he extent that they are
meaningful and appropriale to the NHS, as determined by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial
Reporling Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits a choice of accounling policy, the accounling palicy that
is judged to be mosl appropriate to tha particutar circumstances of the trusl for the purpose of giving a true
and fair view has been selected. The particular policies adopled are described below. These have been
applied consislently in dealing wilh items considared material in relation 1o accounts

Aecounting convenlion

These accounts have been prepared under the histarical cost convention moddicd to actount for the
revaluation of property, planl and equipment, inlangible assels, inventorias and cerain financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Guoing Concern

IAS 1 requires managemenl lo assess, as parl of the accounts preparation process, the Trusl's ability o
conlinue as a going concern. In the context of non-rading enlities in the public sector the anticipaled
continualion of lhe provision of a service in the fulure is normally sufficient evidence of going concern. The
Trusl is also raquired 1o follow the guidance contained wilhin the Deparimenl of Health and Social Care
Group Accounting Manual as regards going concern matiers

In the context of non-trading entilies in the public secior the anticipaled continuation of the proviston of a
service In the fulure is normally sulficient evidence of going concern. The financial slalements should be
prepared on 3 going concern basis unless Ihere are plans for, or no realistic allernalive other tham, the
dissolution of the Trust without the transfer of its services lo another enlily within the public seclor.

In preparing the financial statemenls the direclors have considered the Trusl's averall financial posilion and
expectalion of fulure financial support The Trust has submilled a financial plan for 2018/12 to NHS
Improvement which delivers a £64.4 milion deficit alter delivery of a £61.9 million savings programme which
has been agreed by the Trust Board and is embedded in the budgel. The Truest board have recognised that
this is a highly demanding plan, which is subject to a high degree of risk, and dependenl upon the full delivery
of cost reduction targels, realisation of recurrent savings, and the adherence fo agreed budgets.

The Trust has also taken into accounl the leve! of historic loans wilh the Depariment of Heslth and Social
Care (DHSC). Given the need to continue to deliver public services, the DHSC will not force the Trusl lo make
loan repayments where Ihis will have a detimental effect on the provision of healthcare 1o the public. The
Trust is working towards achieving an improved financial position, which will make it less refiant on cash
support from the DHSC in the fulure,

The Trust has also submilted a provisionat financial plan for 2019/20 to NHS Improvement which delivers a
£26.4 million deficil after delivery of a E65.0 million savings programme which has been agreed by the Trust
Board.

The underlying financial performance of the Trust wilhin the 2018/19 plan is a deficit of £64.4 million and the
Trust is reliant upon £7.0 million of non-recurrent savings during 2018/19 in order lo achieve the 2018/19
control tolal. The plan includes a requirement for up (o £104 9 million of cash suppodt from the Depariment of
Health and Social Care, of which £51.7 million is required 10 maintain revenue cash flows, whilst £53.2 million
is required to support essential capital investment -

NHS Improvement has not, al the dale of approval of the financial slalements, confirmed the support for
201818 and 2019/20.
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Notes to the Accounts {cont.)

1.2

13

1.4

Allhough these faclors represent malerial uncertainties that may cast significant doubt abowt lhe Trust's ability to conlinue
as a going concern, the Direclors, having made appropriate enquiries, still hava reasonable expeclations that the Trust
will have adequale resources to continue in operalional existence for the foreseeabte future As direcled by the 2017/18
Depariment of Health and Social Care Group Accounting Manual, the Diteclors have prepared the financial stalements
on a going concern basis as they consider that the services currently provided by the Trust will cantinue 1o be provided in
lhe foreseeable fulwre On this basis, the Trust has adopted the going concern basis for preparing the financial
statemenls and has not included the adjustments that would resull if it was unable fo canlinue as a going cancem

Acquisitions and discontinued operatlons

Aclivilies are considercd to be "acquired’ anly if they aie laken on from oulside the public sector. Aclivities are
considered 1o be “disconlinued’ only if thay cease enlirely. They are not considered 1o be 'discontinued: if they transier
from one public seclor body lo another.

Charitable Funds

Under Ihe provisions of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, those Charilable Funds that fall under
common contro! wilh NHS bodies are consolidated within the enlity's linancia) statements In accordance with 1AS 1
Presentalion of Financial Statements, restated prior period accounts are presented where the adoplion of the new policy
has a maleral impact. Barls Charily is independent of he Trust and thesefore consolidation is not required,

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

in the application of the NHS trust's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, eslimates and
assumplions aboul the carrying amounts of assels and liabllities that are nol readily apparent from other sources The
estimates and assoclated assumptions are based on hislorical experience and other factors Ihat are considered fo be
relevant. Actual resulls may differ from those estimates and the eslimales and underlying assumplions are confinually
reviewed. Revisions lo accounling estimales are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
aflects only that period or in the period of 1he revision and fulure periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods,

1.4.1 Crltical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below) that management has made
in Ihe process of applying the NHS frust's accounting policies and lhat have the most significant effect on the amounts
recegnised in the financial statements

Department of Health and Social cara guidance specifies that the Trust's land and buildings should be valued on the
basis of depreciated replacement cost, applying the Modern Equivalent Assel (MEA} concepl. The MEA is defined as “the
cost of a modern replacement assel that has ihe same produclive capacity as the property being valued.” Therefore the
MEA is nol a valuation of the existing land and buildings that the Trust holds, but a thearetical valvation for accounting
purposes of what the Trust coutd need 1o spend in order to replace the curreni assels.

In determining the MEA, the Trus! has lo make assumplions that are practically achievable, however the Trust is nol
required to have any plans lo make such changas.

The Trust is salisfied that the assumptions underpinning the MEA valuation are practically achievable. would not change
the services provided by the Trust, and would nol impact on sefvice delivery or the leve! and volume of service provided.
This is because all stafl are contracted 1o work across all sites, and the calchment area for patients using the services
has been taken inlo account when deciding on an appropriate alternative site.
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Notes to the Accounts {cont.)

14.2

The Trust does nol Intend to imptement any of the thaorelical assumptions thal underpin the MEA valuation

For the purpose of the MEA valuation, the Trust has defined afl of St Bartholomews Hospital and an element of the
Royal London Hospital as buildings thal provide specialist heallh care services. The MEA valualion in the accounls
assumes (hal these services could theorelically be provided from a location in Waltham Forest, as all staff are
conracled 1o work across all siles and the patients will need spocialist heallhcare which will only be avaitable fram
specialist cenlres

For he purpose of the MEA valuation, the Trust has assumed that the modern equivatent asset for Whipps Cross
University Hospilal would be a mulli storey building, which vould occupy less land.

For lhe purpose of the MEA valuation, the Trust has not included unused space, unused land, underutilised space
and any space not used for healthcare purposes or required 1o direclly supporl the delivery of healthcare, in the
calculalion of modern equivalent assel.

The MEA valuations used by the Trust have been provided to the Trusl by the Valuation Office Agency. The Trust
has used component lives based upon contractual information provided by the Valuation Office Agency lo depreciale
buildings and dwellings an a component basis.

The Trust does not have any contraclual arangements that contain material embedded leases that are required to
be capitalised under IFRIC 4 (Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease).

The Trust uses the standard Department of Heallh and Social Gare model 1o account {or its PF) schemes.

The Trust has eslimaled the provision for pensions relating to former staff using estimales provided by the NHS
Pensicn Agency provided at the time of the member's early retirement. These are updated if the member dies or il it
becomes apparent thal the provision is not sufiicient lo mee! the liabilily.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the NHS trust's accaunting policies, management is required {0 make judgements, eslimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities thal are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumplions are based on hislorical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relgvant. Aclual resulls may differ from those estimates and the estimates and underlying
assumplions are continually reviewed. Revisions lo accounting estimales are recognised in the period In which Ihe
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that pesiod or in the pericd of the revision and fulure perieds if the
revision affecls both current and luture periods

The Trusl has a dispule with NHS England {London) Specialised Commissioning regarding work that has been
undertaken during the year. The Trusl requested for iwo independent expert reviews and has received opinion on the
maller which has been used lo assess the appropriate level of income 1o be included within the financial stalement,
The outcomes collaborate Ihe Trusl view thal this work is payable. The dispute will now progress through the
conlractual dispule resolulion process.

Revenue - Note 1.5 and Note 4.1 to 4.4
The basis of calcutation for partially compleled spells is detaited in note 1.5.

Asset Lives - Note 1.10

The reporied amounts for depreciation of property, planl and equipment and amorlisalion of non-current intangible
assels can be malerially alfecled by the judgements exercised in delernining their estimated economic lives
Economic lives are delermined in a number of different ways such as valuations (external professional opinion) and
physical asse! veriicalion exercises.

The minimum and maximum estimated economic lives of each class of asset are disclosed in note 1.10. and the
carrying values of property, plant and equipment and inlangible assels in notes 15 and 16 respeclively.

Land and Buildings Valuations - Note 13.1

Land and Building assels were revalued al 31st March 2018. This valualion was camied out by Ros Johnson
MA{Hons) MRICS, Principal Surveyor, DVS Property Services arm of the Valuation Office Agency using a Modern
Equivalenl Asset valuation methodology The valualion methodogy is set cut in the RICS guidance, the Treasury
FReM, Treasury Guidance on asset valuations and the IFRS (IAS16) guidance
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Notes 10 the Accounts {cont.)

1.7

Provision for Impairment of Receivables -- Note 16.1

Provisions are based on the average percentage recovery rate of income received for current and prior
financial years, according 1o each category of receivable. The Trust follows the guidance issued in the DH
Group Accounting Manual in relation fo the recommended rate for Injury Cost Recavery receivables.

1.5 Revenue

Revenue in respecl of services provided is recognised when, and lo the extenl thal, performance occurs,
and is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. The main source of revenue for the trusl is
from commissioners for heallhcare services. Revenue relaling to patient care spells that are parl-compleled
al the year end are apportioned across the financial years on the basis ol length of slay al the end of the
reporting period compared to expecied lotal length of slay/costs incurred to date compared lo lolal expecled
cosis.

Where income is received for a specific activity thal is to be delivered in the following year, thal income is
deferred.

The NHS trust receives income under the NHS injury Cosl Recovery Scheme, designed to reclaim the cost
of treating injured individuals to whorn personal injury compensalion has subsequently been paid e.g. by an
insurer. The NHS trust recognises the income when it receives notification fram the Department of Work
and Pension's Compensation Recovery Unit thal the individual has lodged a compensation claim. The
income is measured at the agreed tariff for the irealments provided to the injured individual, less a provision
for unsuccessful compensation claims and doubtful debis.

The pharmacy produclion departmenl makes goods for sale. The depariment obltains prices by adding
overheads to the total direct cosls, The price arrived at is then evaluated against the current markel prices.

1.6 Employce Benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such as social security costs and the apprenticeship
levy are recognised in the period in which the service is received from employees. The cost of annual leave
entittement earned but not taken by employees at the end of the period is recagnised in the financial
slatements to the exlenl that employees are permilted to carry-forward leave into (he following period.

Pension costs

Past and presenl employees are covered by the provisions of the NHS Pension Scheme. The scheme is an
unfunded, defined benefit scheme that covers NHS employers, general praclices and other bodies, allowed
under the direction of Secrelary of State, in England and Wales. The scheme is not designed in a way that
would enable employers to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, the
schemes are accounted for as though they are defined contribution schemes. Employer's pension cost
contributions are charged to operating expenses as and when they become due.

For early relirements other than those due to ifl health the additional pension liabilities are not funded by the
scheme. The full amount of the liability for the additional cosls is charged to expenditure at the time the NHS
trust commits itself to the retiremenl, regardiess of the method of paymenil,

Where staff are not eligible for the NHS Pensions Scheme, they are enlitled to join the National Employment
Savings Trust (NEST).

The schemes are subject to a full actuarial valuation every four years and an accounting valuation every
vear,

Other expenses

Other operating expenses are recognised when, and to the extent that, the goods or services have been
received. They are measured at the fair value of the consideration payable.
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Noles to the Accounts (cont )
Properly, plant and equipment

1.8 Recognition
Propeity, plan! and equipment is capitalised wheore

- it is held for use in delivering services or for adminisirative purposcs

* iLis probable that lulure econcmic benefils vill fiow 1o, or service potenlial be provided lo, the 1rusl

* iLis expected lo be used for more than one finanzial year

* Ihe cost ol the ilem can be measured reliably

= the ilem has cosl of al leasl £5,000, or

* colleclively, a number of ilems have a cost of at least £5,000 and individually have cosl ol more than £250, where the assels are
funclionaliy interdependent, had broadiy simullaneous purchase dates, are anlic’'pated o have similar disposal dales and are under
single managerial control.

- ilems form part of the initial equipment and set-up cost of a new building, ward or unil, innespeclive of their indwidual or coleclive
cosl.

Valuatlon

All property, plant and equipment assets are measured inilialty at cost, representing the cosls directly aliribuiable 1o acquiring or
caastrucling the assel and bringing if 1o the fozallon and condilion necessary for it to be capabls of operating In the manner intended
by management. Assels thal are held for thelr service potential and are in use are measured subsequenlly at their currenl value in
exisling use, Assels thal were mosl recently hefd for their service polential but are surplus are measured al lair value where there are
no resirictions prevenling access (o the market al the reporling date

Revaluations of properly, planl and equipmen! are performed with sufficient regularily 1o enswre that carrying amounis are nol
materially dillerenl fram those thal would be delermined at the end of the repoiting periad. Current values in exisling use are
delermined as foflows:

+ Land and non-specialised buildings ~ market value for existing use.

» Specialised buildings - deprecialed replacemenl cost, modern equivalent asset basis,

HM Treasury has adopled a slandard approach to deprecialed replacement cost valualions based on modern equivalen! assets and,
where it would mee! ke location requirements of the service being provided, an allernalive site can be valued.

Properties in the course of construction for service or adminisiralion purposes are carsied al cosl, less any impairmenl loss. Cosl
includes professional fees and, where capitalised in accordance with 1AS 23, borrowing costs. Assels are revalued and depreciation
commences when lhey are brough! inlo use

IT equipmen), transporl equipmen, furnilure and fillings, and planl and machinery ihal are held for operational use are vatued al
deprecialed historic cost where these assets have shorl uselul ecenomic tives or low values or bath, as Ihis is nol considered (o be
malerially diflerent from current value in exisling use

An increase arlsing on revalualion is laken to the revaluation reserve except when il reverses an impairment for the same assel
previously recognised in expendilure, in which case it is credited 1o expendilure to the extent of the decrease previously charged there,
A revaluation decrease that does nol rasull from a less of ecenomic value or service potential is recognised as an impairment charged
lo the revaluation reserve la the exlenl that there is a balance on the reserve for lhe asset and, therealter, lo expenditure Impairmen!
losses thal arise from a clear consumption of economic benefil should be {aken to expenditure. Gains and [osses recognised in the
revalualion reserve are reporied as olher comprehensive income in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Subsequent expenditure

Where subsequent expendilure enhances an asset beyond its original specification, the directly altributable cost is capitalised. Where
subsequent expendilure restores the asset o its original specificalion, the expendilure is capilalised and any existing carnrying value of
the item replaced Is writlen-oul and charged lo operaling expenses.

1.9 Intangible assels
Recognition
Inlangible assels are non-monetary assels without physical substance which are capable of being scld separately Irom the rest of the
lrust's business or which arise from contraclual or other legal rights. They are recognised only where il is probabile thal future
economic benefits will flow 1o, or service potential be provided lo, the trugt and whera the cost of the assel can be measured reliably
and where the cost is al least £5,000.

Intangible assels acquired separately are initially recognised at cost Saftware thal is inlegral to the operalion of hardware, for
example an operaling system, is capitalised as part of the relevant item of property, plant and equipment. Software thal is nol integral
to the aparalion of hardware, for example applicalion soflware, is capitatised as an intangible asset Expenditure on research is nol
capitalised it is recognised as an operaling expense in the period in which it is incutred
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Internally-generaled assels are recognised if, and only if, all of the fotlowing have been demonsiraled
+the technical leasible of completing the intangible so that it will be available for use;
* the intention to complete the intangible asset and use il:
« the ability to sell or use the intangible assel;
* how the intangible assel will generate probable future economic or service delivery benefils,
* adiequate financial, technical and olher resowrces are available to complete the intangible asset and sell or usa it, and
* the abilily 1o measure reliably the expenses atiributable o the imangible asset during its development

Measurement

The amount initially recognised for inrternally-generated intangible assels is the sum of the expendilure incurced from the dale
when the crileria above are inilially met. Where no internally-generaled intangible assel can be recognised, the expendilure is
recognised in the period in which it is incurred,

Fallowing inilial recognition, intangible assels are carried at current value in exisling use by reference lo an active market, or,
where no active market exists, at the lower of amorlised replacement cost (modern equivalent assets basis) and value in use
where the assel is income generating. Internally-developed software is held at historic cost to reflect the opposing effecis of
increases in development costs and technological advances.

1.10 Depreciation, amortisation and impairments

Freehold land, assels under construclion or development, and assels held for sale ara not depreciated/amortised.

Othenvise, depreciation or amortisation is charged to write off the cosis or valuation of properly, plant and eguipment and
intangible non-current assets, less any residual value, on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives The estimaled
usefu! life of an assel is the period over which the NHS trust expecls lo ablain economic benefits or sarvice potential from the
assel. This is specific to the NHS trust and may be shorter than the physical life of the assel itsell. Estimaled useful lives and
residual values are reviewed each year end, wilh the effect of any changes recognised on a prospeclive basis  Assels held
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated uselul lives.

Al gach financial year-end, the NHS trusl checks whether there is any indication that ils property, plant and equipmenl or
intangible non-current assels have suffered an impairment loss. I there is indication of such an impairment, the recoverable
amount of the assel is estimaled lo determine whether there has been a loss and, if 50, its amounl. Intangible assets nol yet
available for use are tested for impairment annually at the financial year end.

A revalualion dacrease that does not result from a loss of economic value of service potential is recognised as an impairment
charged lo the revalualion reserve 1o the exient that there is 3 balance on the reserve for the asset and, therealter, to
expendilure. Impairment losses that arise lrom a clear consumplion of economic benefil are taken to expenditure. Where an
impaimmenl loss subisequently raverses, the carrying amounl of the ssset is increased to the revised estimate of the
recoverable amount but capped at the amount that wouwld have been determined had there been no initial impairment loss
The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to expenditure 1o the exten! of the decrease previously charged there and
therealter lo the revalualion reserve.

Useful economic lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

Useful economic lives refiect the lolal life of an asset and not the remaining life of an assel. The range of usaful economic
lives are shown in the table below. In additian, within the Furniture and Filtings calegory the Trust holds a number of paintings
with indefinite life, although the total value is immaterial. There are 38 paintings in lotal with an averall value of £21k as al 31st
March 2018.

Economic Lives of Non-Current Assels Min Llfa Max Life
_Years Years

ISDIMara Licences 2 5
|Buildings exc Dwellings

2 72

{Dwettings 3 72

[Prant & Machinery 5 10
Transporl Equipment 2 7

infarmation Technology 5 12

Furnilure and Fittings 10 15
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1.11 Donated assels

1.13

1.14

Donaled non-current assels are capitalised at current value in existing use, if they will be held for their service
polential, or olherwise at value on receipt, with a malching credil lo income. They are valued, depreciated and
impaired as described above for purchased assets. Gains and losses on revaluations, impairmenis and sales
are trealed in the same way as for purchased assets, Deferred income is recognised only where conditions
altached to the donation preclude immediate recognition of the gain.

Government grants

Government grant funded assets are capilalised al currenl value in existing use, if they will be held for their
service polential, or otherwise at fair value on receipl, with a malching credit to income. Deferred income is
recognised only where conditions attached 1o the grant preclude immediate recognition of lhe gain.

Leases
Leases are classified as finance leases when subsltanlially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
Iransferred to the lessee. All olher leases are classified as operaling leases.

The Trust as lessee

Where subslantially all risks and rewards of ownership of a leased assel are borne by the trust, the assel is
recarded as properly, plant and equipment and a corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which both are
recoegnised fs the lower of the falr value of the asset or the present value of lhe minimum lease payments,
discounted using the interest rate impticit in the lease.

The asset and liabilily are recognised al the commencement of the lease. Thereafies the asset is accounted for
an item of property plant and equipment.

The annual rental is split belween the repayment of the liability and a finance cosl 50 as to achieve a constant
rate of finance over the life of the lease. The annual finance cost is charged to Finance Costs in the Stalement
of Comprehensive Income. The lease liability, is de-recognised when the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Operating lease paymenls are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Lease
incenlives are recognised inilially as a liability and subsequenlly as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis
over the lease term,

Contingent rentals are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Where a lease is for fand and buildings, the land component is separated from the building component and the
classificalion for each is assessed separately.

The Trust as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the amount of the trust net
invesiment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the trusts' net investment outstanding in respect of the leases,

Renlal income from operating leases is recognised on a straighi-line basis over the term of the lease. [nitial
direct costs incurred in negoliating and arranging an operaling lease are added lo the carrying amount of the
ieased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Private Finance [nitiative (PFl) transactions

PF1 transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of a service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury's
FReM, are accounted for as 'on-Statement of Financial Posilion’ by the Trust. In accordance with IAS 17, the
underlying assets are recognised as property, plant and equipment, together with an equivalent finance lease
liability. Subsequently, the assels are accounled for as property, ptant and equipment and/or intangible assels as
appropriate.
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144

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) transactions {cont}

The annual coniract payments are apporlioned between the repayiment of the lizbility, o finance cost and the
charges for services

The service charge is recognised in operaling expenses and the finance cost is charged 1o finance costs in the
Stalement of Comprehensive thcome

Further defails of PFI ransactions are included in notas 22 and 23

The PFI assels are recognised os property, plam and equipment, when they come into use. The assels are measured inilially
at fair value or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lzase payments, in accordance wilh (he principles of 1AS 17,
Subsequently, the assels are measured at current value in exisling use

A PF| liability is recognised al the same time as the PFI assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the same amounl as
the initial value of the PFl assels and is subsequenlly measured as a finance lease liability in accordance wilh IAS 17,

An annual {inance cosl is calculated by applying the implicil interest rale in the lease fo the opening lease liability for the
period, and is charged 1o ‘Finance Cosls' within lhe Statemeni of Comprehensive Income.

The element of the anaua) unitary payment that is allocaled as a finance lease rental is applied to meet the annual finance
cosl and to repay the lease liability over the conlract lerm.

An element of the annyal unitary payment increase due to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance lease In
accordance wilh 1AS 17, this amouni is not included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead trealed as contingeni rent
and is expensed as incurred, In subslance, this amount is a linance cosl in respect of the liability and the expense is
prasented as i conlingent finance cost in the Statemenl of Comprehensive Income

titecycle replacement

Compenents of the assel replaced by the oparalor during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are capitalised where they

meat the NHS trust's criteria for capital expenditure. They are capitalised al the time they are provided by the operator and
are measured initially at their fair value.

The element of the annual unitary paymenl allocaled lo Wtecycle replacement 1s pre-determined lor each year ol the conlract
from the operator's planned programme of lifecycle replacement Where the lifecycte component is provided earlier or later
than expected, a short-lerm acerual of prepaymenl is recognised respechively.

Where the fair value of the lifecycle component is less than the amount determined in the conlracl, the difference is
recognised as an expense when the replacement is provided. If the fair value is greater than the amount delermined in the
contract, the dilference is treated as a ‘fiee” assel and a deferred income balance is recognised The deferred income is
released lo operaling income over the sharier of the femaining conlract period or the useful economic fife of the replacement
component.

Assets conlribuled by the NHS trust to the operator for use in the scheme

Assels contribuled for use in the scheme continug to be recognised as items of propery, plant and equipment in the NHS
lrest's Stalement of Financial Posilion,

Other assels contributed by the NHS trust to the operator

Assets contribuled (e.g. cash payments, surplus property) by the NHS trust to the operator before the asset is broughl into
use, which are inlended to delray the operalor's capilal costs, are recognised inilially as prepaymenis during the construction
phase of the contract. Subsequently, when the assel is made available to the NHS tusl, Ihe prepaymenl is treated as an
initial payment lowards the finance lease liability and is set againsi the carrying value of the liability,

Inventories

Inventorias are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value using the first-in first-out cost formula. This is considered
lo be a reasonable approximation la air value due 1o [he high turnover of stocks.
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1.16 Cash and cash equivalents

117

1.18

1.19

Cash is cash in hand and deposits wilh any financial inslitution repayable withou! penalty on notice of not more
than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are invesiments that mature in 3 months or less from he date of acquisition
and thal are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value,

In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdralls that are repayable
an demand and thal form an integral part of the Teust cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft balances are
recorded at current values.

Provisions

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or conslruclive obligation of uncertain timing or
amount; for which it is probable that there witl be a future oulfiow of cash or other resources; and a reliable
estimale can be made of the amount. The amount recagnised in the Statement of Financial Position is (he bes!
estimate of the resources required to sellle the obligation. Where the effect of the lime value of money is
significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows are discounled using the discount rates published and
mandaled by HM Treasury.

Early retirement provisions are discounted using HM Treasury's pension discount rate of positive 0.10%
(2016/17: posilive 0.24%) in real terms. All other provisions are subject lo three separate discount rates
according to the expecled liming of cashflows from the Stalement of Financial Position date:

© A short term rate of negative 2.42% (2016/17: negalive 2.70%) for expecled cash flows up o and including 5
years

» A medium term rale of negative 1.85% (2016/17: negative 1.95%) for expected cash flows over 5 years up to
and including 10 years

* Along term rale of negative 1.56% (2016/17: negative 0.80%) for expected cash flows over 10 years.

All percentages are in real lerms.

When some or all of the economic benefils required 1o seltle a provision are expecled to be recovered from a
third party, the receivable is recognised as an assel if it is virtually certain thal reimbursements will be received
and the amount of lhe receivable can be measured reliably.

A restructuring provision is recognised when the NHS trust has developed a detailed formal plan for the
restructuring and has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting
o implement the plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. The measuremenl of a
restructuring provision inciudes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those
amounts thal are both necessarily entailed by the restructuring and not associated with ongeing aclivities of the
entity.

Clinical negligence costs

NHS Resolution operates a risk poaling scheme under which the trust pays an annual conlribution to NHS
Resolution, which, in return, setiles all clinical negligence claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively
responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal liability remains with the trust. The total value of clinical
negligence provisions carried by NHS resolution on behalf of the trust is disciosed at nole 21.1 but is not
recognised in the trust's accounts.

Non-clinical risk pooling

The trusl participates in the Property Expenses Scheme and the Liabilities lo Third Parties Scheme. Both are
risk pooling schemes under which the trust pays an annual contribution to NHS Resalution and in return
receives assistance with the cosls of claims arising. The annual membership contributions, and any *excesses”
payable in respect of particular claims are charged o operaling expenses when the liability arises.
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Notes to the Accounts {cant.)

1.20

1.21

1.22

Carbon Reduction Commilment Scheme {CRC}

The CRC scheme is a mandatory cap and rade scheme for non-transport CO2 emissions. The trusl is
registered with the CRC scheme, and is therefore required lo surrender lo the Governmenl an allowance {or
every tonne of CO2 it emils during the financiat year. A liability and related expense is recognised in respecl of
this obligation as CO2 emissions are made,

The carrying amounl of the liability at the financial year end will therefore reflect the CO2 emissions that have
been made during that financial year, less the alfowances (it any) surrendered voluniarily during the financia
year in respect of thal financial year. The liability is valued at {air value af the end of the reporting period.

Contingencies

Contingent assets (lhal is, assets arising from past evenls whose existence will only be confirmed by one or
more fulure events not wholly within the enlily's conlrol) are not recognised as assels, but are disclosed where
an inflow of economic bengfits is probable.

Conlingent liabilities are not recognised, bui are disclosed, unless the probabilily of a transfer of economic
benefils is remote.

Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities which arise fram contracls for the purchase or sale of non-financial
items (such as goods or services), which are enlered info in accordance with the trust's normal purchase, sale
or usage requirements, are recognised when, and to the extent which, performance occurs, ie, when receipt or
delivery of the goods or services is made.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through income and expenditure

Financial assels and financial liabilities at “fair value through income and expenditure” are financial assets or
financial liabilities held for trading. A financial asset or financial liability is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designaled as hedges.

Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivalive financial assets with fixed or determinable paymenls which are not
quoied in an active market.

The truslt’s loans and receivables comprise: cash and cash equivalents, NHS receivables, accrued income and
other receivables.

Loans and receivables are recognised initially at fair value, nel of transactions cosls, and are measured
subsequently at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. The effective interest rale is the rate that
discounts exaclly estimated fulure cash receipls through the expected life of the financial asset or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the nel carrying amount of the financial assat,

Interest on loans and receivables is calculated using the effective interest method and credited o the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Notes to the Accounts {cant.)
Financial Instruments (cont)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assels which are either designated in this
category or nol classified in any of the olher categories. They are included in long-term assels unless the
trust inlends lo dispose of them within 12 months of the Statement of Financial Position date.

Available-for-sale financial assels are recognised initially al fair value, including transaction cosls, and
measured subsequently al fair value, with gains or losses recognised in reserves and reported in the
Statement ol Comprehensive Income as an item of “other comprehensive income”. When items classified
as "available-lor-sale” are sold or impaired, the accumulaled fair value adjustimenis recognised are
transferred from reserves and recognised in “finance cosls” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Other financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initially al fair valus, nel of ransaclion costs incurred, and measured
subsequently at amorlised cosl using the elfective inleres| method. The effeclive interest rate is the rate thal
discounls exactly estimated fulure cash payments through the expected lile ol the financia! liability or, when
appropriate, a shorler period, to the net carrying amount of the financial liability.

They are included in current liabilities excep! for amounts payable more than 12 monlhs after the Statement
of Financial Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.

Interesl on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effeclive interes! method and
charged 1o finance costs. Interesi on financial liabilities taken out lo finance property, planl and equipment or
intangible assels is not capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Al the Statement of Financial Pasition date, the trust assesses whelher any linancial assets, olher than
those held at “fair value through income and expandilure” are impaired. Financial assets are impaired and
impairment losses are recognised if, and only if, there is objeclive evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more evenls which occurred after the initial recognition of the assel and which has an impact on the
eslimaled future cash flows ol the asset.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows
discounted al the asset's original effeclive interest rate. The loss is recagnised in the Statement of
Comprehensive income and the carrying amount of the assel is reduced directly through the use of bad debl
provision.

Other financial liabilities

All tinancial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction cosis incurred, and measurad
subsequenlly at amorlised cost using the effective interest method. The effeclive interest rate is the rate that
discounts exactly estimated {uture cash payments through the expecled life of the financial liability or, when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the nel carrying amount of the financial liability.

They are included in current liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 months after the Statement
ol Financial Position date, which are classified as long-term liabilities.

Interest on financial liabilities carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effeclive interest method and

charged to finance cosls. Inleresl on financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant and equipment or
inlangible assets is not capilalised as part of the cost of those assels.
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Notes o the Accounls {cont.)

1.23

1.24

1.25

1.26

Financial Instruments {cont)

tmpairment of financial assels

Al the Stalement of Financial Posilion dale, the Trust assesses whelher any financial assets, olher than those: held al "{air
value through income and expendilure” are impaired. Financial assels are impaired and impairment losses are recognised
it. and only if, there is objeclive evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events which occurred alfler the initial
recognilion of the asset and which has an impact on the eslimated fulure cash flows of the asset

For financial assets carried at amorlised cosl, the amaunt of the impairment loss is measured as the difierence between
the assel’s carrying amount and the present value of the revised luture cash flows discounted al the assel’s original
elfeclive inlerest rale, The loss is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Incorme and the carrying amount of the
assel is reduced through the use of a bad debt provisian

Provisions are based on Ihe average percentage recovery rale of income received for current and prior financial years,
according lo each category of receivable

Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector equity finance based on the excess of assets over liabilities at the
lime of establishment of the predecessor NMS organisation HM Treasury has delermined thal PDC is nol a financial
inslrument within the meaning of 1AS 32.

Al any lime, the Secrelary of Stale can issue new PDC to, and require repayments of POC from, lhe trust. PDC is
recorded al the value received

A charge, reflecting the cost of capilal utiised by the trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. The charge is
calculated at the rale set by HM Treasury (currently 3 5%) on the average relevanl nel assels of the trust during the
financial year, Relevanl net assels are calculated as the value of all assets less the valug of al liahilities, except for

(i) donaled assels {including loltery funded assets),

(i) average daily cash balances hetd with the Gavermment Banking Services (GBS) and Nalional Loans Fund (NLF)
deposits, excluding cash balances held in GBS accounls that relale to a short-term working capital facility, and

(iii} any POC dividend balance receivable or payable.

In accordance wilh the requirements laid down by the Depariment of Heallth and Social Care (as the issuer of PDC), the
dividend for the year is calculated on the aclual average retevant net assels as set oul in the “pre-audit” version of the
annual accounts. The dividend thus calculated is not revised should any adjusiment to net assels occur as a resull the
audit of the annual accounts,

Value added tax

Most of the aclivities of the trust are oulside the scope of VAT and, in general, outpul tax does no! apply and inpul tax on
purchases is nol recoverable. lrrecoverable VAT (s charged to the relevant expenditure calegory or included in the
capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. Where oulput tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, the amounts are
stated nel of VAT.

Forelgn exchange
A transaction which is denominaled in a foreign currency is translated into the functionat currency al the spot exchange
rate on the dale of the transaction Where the trust has assets or liabilities denominaled in a foreign currency at the

Statement of Financial Posilion date monetary items {other than financial instruments measured at *fair value {hrough
income and expenditure”) are translated at the spot exchange rate on 31 March

Third party assets

Assels belonging 1o third pardies {such as money held on behalf of patients) are not recognised in the accounts since the
Irust has no beneficial interest in them. However, they are disclosed in a separale note lo the accounts in accordance with
the requirements of HM Treasury's FReM . Details of third party assels are given in Nole 17.1 of the accounts,
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Notes to the Accounts (cont.)

1.27

1.28

2.0

3.0

Losses and special payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament would not have contemplated when it agreed
funds for the health service or passed legistation. By their nature they are items that ideally should not
arise. They are therefore subject to special control procedures compared with the generality of paymenis
They are divided inlo different categories, which govern the way that individual cases are handled. Losses
and special paymenis are charged to the refevant functional headings in expenditure on an accruals basis,
including losses which would have been made good through insurance cover had the trust not been
bearing their own risks (with insurance premiums ihen being included as normal revenue expenditure).

However the losses and special payments note is compiled directly from Ihe losses and compensations
register which reports on an accrual basis with the exception of provisions for future losses.

Gifts

Giils are items that are voluntarily donated, with no preconditions and without the expectalion of any
return. Gifts include all transaclions economically equivalent to free and unremunerated ransfers, such as
the loan of an asset for ils expected useful life, and the sale or lease of assets at below market value.

Operating segments

The nalure of the Trust's services is the provision of healthcare. Similar methods are used lo provide
services across all lacations, since all policies, procedures and governance arrangements are Trusl wide.
As an NHS Trust, all services are subject lo the same regulatory environment and standards set by our
external performance managers. Accordingly, Ihe Trust operales one segment.

201617 2015/16

£000s £000s
Income 1,512,726 1,488,833
Segment deficit (108,299) (109,137)

Income generation activities

The Trust undertakes income generation activities with an aim of achieving profit, which is then used in
palient care. The Trust had no individual income generation activity whose full cost exceeded £1m or was
olherwisa rnaterial,
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Note 4 Operating income from patient care activities

Note 4.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature) 2017118 2016/17
£000 £000
Acute services
Eleclive income 156,626 149,029
Non eleclive income 346,601 303,833
First outpatient income 61,518 60,915
Follow up outpatient income 60,599 72,855
A & E income 60,108 53,637
High cost drugs income from commissioners {excluding pass-through
cosls) 123,498 111,860
Other NHS clinical income 452 427 449,413
Community services
Community services income from CCGs and NHS England 18,854 44,754
Income from other sources (e.g. local auihorities) - -
All services
Private patient income 5617 3,679
Other clinical income 13,962 16,156
Total income from activities 1,299,810 1,266,131

Note 4.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

Income from patient care activities received from: 2017118 2016117
£000 £000
NHS England 516,258 464,554
Clinical commissioning groups 741,797 753,220
Department of Health and Social Care 253 174
Other NHS providers 9612 14,505
NHS other 421 379
Local authorities 1,541 13,460
Non-NHS: private patients 5617 3,672
Non-NHS: averseas patients (chargeable to patient) 9,414 9,872
NHS injury scheme 4,526 6,241
Non NHS: other 37 43
Total income from activities 1,299,810 1,266,131
Of which:
Related to conlinuing operations 1,299,810 1,266,131

Related to discontinued operations - -
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Note 4.3 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

2017118 201617

£000 £600
Income recognised this year 9,414 9,872
Cash paymenls received in-year 1,245 1,239
Amounts added 1o provision for impairment of receivables 5,628 6,582
Amounis wrillen off in-year 1,715 1,256

Note 4.4 Other operating income
201718 201617

£000 £000
Research and development 46,267 48,215
Education and training 77,040 77.693
Receipt of capital grants and donations 6,795 6,036
Charitable and other confributions to expendilure 93 140
Non-patient care services to other bodies 6,950 7,879
Support from the Department of Health and Social Care for mergers - -
Sustainability and transformation fund income 36,607 45,832
Rental revenue from operating leases 3,109 1,956
Other income
Pharmacy sales 1,602 1.841
Propeirty rental (not lease income) 4,807 3,500
IT Turnaround support 660 520
Other 28,986 29,090
Total other operating income 212,916 222,702
Of which:
Related to continuing operations 212,916 222,702

Related to discontinued operations - -
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5. Operating Expenses
Note 5.1 Operating expenses
2017118 20617

£000 £000
Purchase of heallhcare from NHS and DHSC bodies 8,789 5,834
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DMSC bodies 7,768 7.756
Slaff and executive directors cosls 888,903 869,083
Remuneration of non-execulive direclors 109 68
Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs) 139,780 128,159
Supplies and services - general 75,578 42,918
Drug cosis (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-invenlory drugs) 174,632 164,628
Consultancy costs 5,898 12,107
Eslablishment 9,508 9,103
Prermises 53,356 19,853
Transport (including patient travel) 12,649 18,025
Deprecialion on property, plant and equipment 49,048 51,022
Amortisalion on intangibile asseis 313 352
Net impairmenls 1,730 40,396
Increase/{decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables 2,253 2,988
Change in provisions discount rate(s) 185 1,426
Audil fees payable o the exlernal auditor
audit services- stalutory audil 13 180
other auditor remuneralion (exlernal auditor anly) g 12
Internal audil costs - -
Clinical negligence 44,715 40,650
Legal fees 1,257 853
Insurance 1,143 1,145
Research and development 24718 17,676
Education and Iraining 4,842 3,412
Rentals under operating leases 3,882 6,021
Charges lo operaling expenditure for an-SoFP IFRIC 12 schemes
{e.g. PF1/ LIFT) on IFRS basis 30,253 57,600
Hospitalily 49 6
Other 9,308 9,228
Total 1,550,806 1,540,502
Of which:
Relaled to conlinuing operations 1,550,806 1,540,502

Relaled to discontinued operalions - S
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Note 5.2 Other auditor remuneration

20617/18 2016117
£000 £000
Other auditor remuneration paid to the externai auditor:

Audit of the Trust Qualily Accounls ] 12
Total 9 12
Note 5.3 Limitation on auditor's liability
The limiation on audilors liabilibly for external audit work is £2m (2016/17: £0m)

Note 5.4 Impairment of assets
2017118 201617
£000 £000
Net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit resulting
from:

Changes in market price 794 B.158

Other 936 32,238
Total net impairments charged to operating surplus / deficit 1,730 40,396

Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve 2,742 22,229
Total net impairments 4472 62,625
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Note 6 Employee benefits

Salaries and wages
Social security costs
Apprenticeship levy
Employer's contributions to NHS pensions
Pension cost - other
Termination benefits
Temporary staff (including agency)
Total gross staff costs
Total staff costs

Of which
Cosls capitalised as part of assels

Note 6.1 Retirements due to ill-health

Number of persons retired early on il health grounds

Total additional pensions liabilities accrued in the year

2017118 2016117
Total Total
£000 £000

698,076 578,844
73,664 66,995
3,475 -
76,832 67,460
207 179
36,982 155,635
889,236 869,113
889,236 869,113
333 30

2017118 201617

6 4
£000s £000s
524 364

The cost of these ill-heallh retirements will be borne by the NHS Business Services Authority -

Pensions Division.
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Nole 6.2 Staff Cost

Sataries and wages
Sotial security cosls
Appreaticeship levy
Employer's conlributions lo NHS pensions
Terminalion benchils
Temporary slalf
Tatal gross staff costs

Recoveries in respeel of scconded slalf

Total staff cosls
Of which
Cosls capitalised as part ol assects

2016117 Temporary stafl was inclusive of both Bank and agency stafl. The 2017/18 includes only sgency staif

Noto 6.3 Average number of employeas (WTE
basls)

Medical and denlal

Ambulance stalf

Administralion and estales

Heallhcare assistants and olher suppor stalf
Nursing, midwilery and health visiting staff
Nursing, midwilery and health visiting learners

Scienlific, therapeulic and technical staff

Healthcare science stall
Sacial care slafl
Other
Total average numbers
Of which:

Number of employees (WTE) engaged on capital

projects

Noto 6.4 Exit Packages

Reporting of compensation schomes - exit packages 201718

Exit packaga cost band (including any spacial payment oloment)

<£10,000

£10,001 - £25,000
£25,001 - 50,000
£50,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £150,000
£150,001 - £200,000
>E200,000

Total number of exit packages by typo
Tetal resource cost (€)
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2017118 201617
Pormanent Cthor Total Total
£0og £000 £000 £00D
698,076 - 698,076 576.844
73,664 - 73,664 66.095
3475 S 3,475 -
76,632 - 76,832 67,460
207 - 207 179
36,982 35,982 155,635
852,254 316,982 889,236 865,112
852,254 36,982 889,236 869,113
333 - 331 ao
2017148 2016017
Parmanent Othor Tota! Total
Numbear Numbar Number Number
2,274 357 2,631 2,524
3,390 37 3,761 3,724
1.521 - 1,521 951
4710 973 5,681 5,693
. 367 367 865
1,549 225 1,774 2,616
614 14 628 449
14,058 2,307 10,965 16,222
4 - 4 1
Number of Other  Total Number
Number of Daparturos of Exlt
Compulsory Redundancles Agrood Packages
Numbsr Number Numbor
14 - 14
3 - 3
3 - 3
20 - 20
£208,000 £0 £208,000
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Note 7 Pension costs

Pasl and preseni employees are covered by the provisions of the iwo NHS Pension Schemes.
Details of the benefils payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions
website al www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions. Both are unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover
NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction of the Secrelary of
Stale in England and Wales. They are not designed o be run in a way that would enable NHS
bodies to idenlify their share of the underlying scheme assels and liabilities. Therefore, each
scheme is accounted for as if it were a defined conlribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of
participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the contributions payable {o thal scheme for the
accounting period.

In order that the defined benefit obligalions recognised in the financial slatements do not differ
materially from those thal would be delermined at the reporling date by a formal actuarial
valuation, the FReM requires that “the period between formal valuations shall be four years, wilh
approximate assessments in intervening years”. An outline of these follows:

a) Accounting valuation

A valuation of scheme liability is carried oul annually by the scheme actuary (currently the
Government Acluary's Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an acluarial
assessmenl for the previous accounting period in conjunction with updated membership and
financial data for the currenl reporting period, and is accepled as providing suitably robus! figures
for financial reporting purposes. The valualion of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2018, is
based on valuation dala as 31 March 2017, updated to 31 March 2018 with summary global
member and accounling data. In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology
prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the discount rate prescribed by HM
Treasury have also been used.

The latesl assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme
acluary, which forms part of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be
viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are published annually. Copies can also be obtained
from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial {funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the leve! of liability in respect of the benefits due under
the schemes (laking into account recent demographic experience), and to recommend coniribution
rates payable by employees and employers.

The last published actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was compleled for
the year ending 31 March 2012. The Scheme Regulations allow for the level of contribution rates
to be changed by the Secretary of State for Health, with the consent of HM Treasury, and
consideration of the advice of the Scheme Actuary and employee and employer representatives as
deemed appropriate,

Page 33



Barts Health NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 2017118

Nole 8 Operaling leases

Note 8.1 Barts Health NHS Trust as a lessor

This nole discloses income generated In operating lease agreements where Barls Health NHS Trust is 1he lessor.

201718 201617
£0060 £000
Operating lease revenue
Minimum lease receipts 3,109 1,956
Contingent rent . -
Other 5 -
Tolal 3,700 1,956
31 March 31 March
2018 2017
£000 L0090
Future miaimum lease recelpts due:
- not later than one year, 3,279 1,971
- later Ihan one year and nol later than five years; 10,758 1,382
- later than five years. 90,354 3,990
Total 104,391 7,343

Nole 8.2 Barts Health NHS Trust as a lessee

This note discloses cosls and commilments incurred in operaling lease arrangementls where Barls Healih NHS Trus! s the

lessee.
201718 20%6/17
£000 EODD
Operating lease expense
Minimum lease payments 3,882 6,021
Contingent rents - -
Less sublease payments received - -
Total 3,802 6021
< 31 March 2018-———neee> 31 March
Bulldings Other Total 2017
£000 £000 £000 £000
Future minimum lease payments due:
- nol fater than one year; 3,623 136 3,759 6,405
< laler than one year and not laler than five years; 6,534 6 6,542 19,109
T- :a:er than live years. 401 - 401 2.357
ola 10558 14q 10,702 ¥

Fulure minimum sublease payments lo ba received . - 5
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Note 9 Finance income

Finance income represents interest received on assels and invesiments in the period.

Interest on bank accounis
Total

Note 10.1 Finance expenditure

2017118 2016117
£000 £000
BO2 129
892 129

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money.

Interest expense:
Loans from the Depariment of Health and Social Care
Finance leases
Interest on late payment of commercial debt

Main finance costs on PFI and LIFT schemes obligations

Conlingent finance costs on PFl and LIFT scheme obligations
Total interest expense

Unwinding of discount on provisions

Other finance cosls
Total finance costs

Note 10.2 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act
1998 / Public Contract Regutations 2015

Amounts included wilthin inlerest payable arising from claims made
under this legislation

Note 11 Other gains / {losses)

Gains on disposal of assets

Losses on disposal of assels
Total gains / (losses) on disposal of assets

Fair value gains / (losses) on financial liabilities
Total other gains / (losses)
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201718 201617
£000 £000
10,782 6,702
275 332

1 -
36,588 37,334
23,506 20,148
71,152 64,516

40 211
71,192 64,727
2017/18 2016117
£000 £000

1 -
2017118 2016117
£000 £000

81 3,358

81 3,358

- 3,772

81 7,130
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Note 12.1 Intangible assets - 201718

Internally generated

Software information
licences technology Total
£000 £000 £000
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2017 -
brought forward 2,028 670 2,698
Additions S - .
Gross cost at 31 March 2018 2,028 670 2,698
Amortisation at 1 April 2017 - brought 1,161 641 1,802
Provided during the year o 284 29 313
Amortisation at 31 March 2018 = 1,445 670 2,115
Net book value at 31 March 2018 583 - 583
Net book value at 1 April 2017 867 29 B96

Note 12.2 Intangible assets - 2016/17

Internally generated

Software information
licences technology Total
£000 £000 £000
Valuation / gross cost at 1 April 2016 - as
previously stated ) 2,008 670 2,678
restated 2,008 670 2,678
Additions 20 - 20
Valuation / gross cost at 31 March 2017 2,028 670 2,698
Amorlisation at 1 April 2016 - as previously 809 641 1,450
Amontisation at 1 April 2046 - restated 805 641 1,450
Pravided during the year 352 - 352
Amortisation at 31 March 2017 1,161 G641 1,802
Net book value at 31 March 2017 B&7 29 896
Net book value at 1 April 2016 1,199 29 1,228
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Note 14 Investment Proporly

The Trust holds no invesiment property (nil in 2016/17)

Note 15 Inventories

Drugs
Consumahles
Energy
Total inventories
of which:
Held at fair value less cosis to sefl

Note 16 Trade receivables and other receivables

Current
Trade reccivables

Capital receivables (including accrued capital related income)
Accrued income

Provision for impaired receivables

Prepayments {non-PFI)

Prepaymenls (PFI)

Prepayments (PFI financial close)

VAT receivable

Qther receivables
Total current trade and other receivables

Non-current

Prepayments (PFI financial close)
Total non-current trade and other receivables

Of which receivables from NHS and DHSC group bodies:

Currenl
Non-current

Note 16.1 Provision for impairment of receivables

At 1 April as previously stated

Increase in provision
Amounls ulilised
Unused amounts reversed

At 31 March
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34 March 2018

31 March 2017

£000 £000
11.289 12,292
15,753 17,072

366 33
27,408 29,695
27,408 29,695

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

£000 £000
158,621 120,265
- 3,525
38,194 19,604
{20,673) {20,556)
8,200 5,085
14,119 25,905
100 100
14,741 10,941
877 1,176
243,979 166,045
4.971 3,009
4,971 3.009
135,366 86,330

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

£000 £000
20,556 18,698
8,344 10,031

{1,936) {1.130)
{6.091) (7.043)
20,873 20,556
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Note 16.2 Credit quality of financial assels

Ageing of impaired financial assels
0 - 30 days

30-60 Days

60-90 days

S0- 180 days

Over 180 days

Total

Ageing of non-lmpaired financial assels past their due date
0- 30 days

30-60 Days

60-80 days

§0- 180 days

Over 180 days

Total

Note 17 Cash and cash equivalents

31 March 2018
Trade and other

31 March 2017
Trade and Other

receivables Receivables
Eaoc EQ00
981 1,332
594 769
572 410
1,413 1,685
17,313 16,360
20,873 20,556
9,759 12,339
2,320 14,341
1,656 1,092
4,3 3,187
20,617 16,085
38,683 37,014

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash al bank, in hand and cash equivalents, Cash equivalen!s are readily
converlible investments of known value which are subject lo an insignificanl risk of change in value.

At 1 April

Nel change in year
At 31 March

Broken down inlo:

Cash at commercial banks and in hand
Cash with the Governmen| Banking Service

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SofP
Bank overdrafis (GBS and commercial banks)

Drawdown in commilled facility
Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoCF

Note 17.1 Third party assels held by the trust

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

£000 £000
3,316 3,217
(292) 99
3,024 3,316
57 163
2,967 3,153
3,024 3,316
3,024 3,316

The trust held cash and cash equivalents which relate to monies held by the the lrust on behalf of patienls or other
parties. This has been excluded from the cash and cash equivalents figure reporied in the accounts.

Bank balances
Monies on deposil
Total third party assets
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31 March 2018

31 March 2017

£000 £000
76 80
76 S0
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Nole 18 Trade and other payables

Current
Trade payables

Capital payables
Accruals

Social security cosls
VAT payables
Other taxes payable
PDC dividend payabla
Accrued interesl on loans
Other payables
Total current trade and other payables

Note 18.1 Early retirements in NHS payables above

31 March

2018 31 March 2017
£000 £000
117,210 87,540
4,288 11,359
14,770 28,552
10,715 328
10,033 am
161 655
105 3.850
158,732 132,775

The payables nole above includes amounts in relation o eaily retiremenis as sel oul below.

Qutslanding pension conlributions

Note 18.2 Other liabllities

Current
Deferred income
Total other current liabilities

Note 19 Borrowings

Current
Loans from the Depariment of Health and Social
Care
Other loans

Obligations under finance leases

PFl lifecycle replacement received in advance

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service
concession conlracls (excl lifecycle)

Total current borrowings

Non-current

Loans from the Depariment of Health and Social
Care

Other loans
Obligations under finance leases

PFI lifecycle replacement reccived in advance
Obligalions under PFI, LIFT or other service

concession contracls
Total non-current borrowings
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31 March
2018 31 March 2017
£000 £000
11,129 1

31 March
2018 31 March 2017
£000 £000
18.009 18,821
18,009 18,821
31 March 31 March 2017
2018 2017
E£000 £000
118,062 3,869
1,650 1.505
24,534 24,522
144,246 29,895
310,933 289,095
4,441 6,012
1,012,830 1.037.364
1,328,204 1,332,471
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Note 20 Finance leases

Note 20.1 Barts Health NHS Trust as a lessee
Obligations under finance leases where Baris Health NHS Trust is the lessee.

31 March 31 March

2018 2017
£000 £000
Gross lease liabilities 6,544 8,350
of which liabilities are due;
- not later than one year; 1,852 1,783
- Iater than one year and not laler than five years; 4,692 6,488
- later than five years. - 79
Finance charges allocated 1o fuiure periods (453) (833)
Net lease liabilities 6,091 7,517
of which payable:
- not later than one year, 1,650 1,505
- laler than one year and not laler than five years; 4,441 5,036
- later than five years. - 76

Tota! of future minimum sublease payments to be received at the
reporting date - -
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Nole 21 Provislons far llabilitics and charges onalysls

Penslons - carly

departure costs  Legal claims Redundancy Other Tolal
£ooo £000 £000 £oog £oon
At 1 Aprll 2017 16,718 741 31 - 17,490
Translors by absoiplion - . - . .
Change in fhe discount rale 185 . - = 185
Adising durng the year 615 157 96 613 1,481
Utilised during the year {1.310) - {31) - (1,341)
poups - - - . -
Reversed unused {231) {61) - - (292)
Unwinding ol discount 40 5 5 . a0
Al 31 March 2018 16,017 837 96 613 17,563
Expected Uming of cash flows:
~nol later than one year; 1,344 a3z 96 613 2,880
- later than ong year and nol laler than tive
years; 5375 - - . 5,375
- later than five years, 9,298 - . - 9,290
Tota) e 16,017 a3r 86 613 17,563

Amouni Included In the Provisions of the NHS Lit galion Aulhority In Respec of

Clinlcal Negligence Liabllities:
As at 31si March 2010 647,867

As at 31st March 2017 531,618

Early Departure Coslis aro for he relevant pension obligations arising from early ralirements of Trust stall,

Legal Claims ara based upon estimales provided by NHS Llligalion Agency and the Tiust solicitors,

Barts Health NHS Trust - Annual Accounts 201718

Note 21.1 Contingent assets and labilities

Value of conlingent llablilties

NHS Resalulion legal claims
Gross value of conlingant liabllities

Amounls recoverable agatnst liabilities
Not value of contingent llablities

Nole 21.2 Contraciual capltal
commltments

Praperty, plani and equipmant
Total

31 March 31 Maech
2010 2m7
£000 £ooo
{165 178
(165 178
{165) (178)

31 March 31 March
2018 207
£000 £0D0

3,055 1,391
3,055 1,391
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Note 22 On-50FP PFI, LIFT or other service contession

Note 22.1 Imputed finance lease obligations

Barls Heallh NHS Trust has the following obligalions in respect of the finance lease element of
on-Stalement of Financial Posilion PFl and LIFT schemes:
31 March 31 March

2018 2017

£000 £000

Gross PFI, LIFT or olher service concession liabilities 1,668,279 1,719,390
Of which liabilities are due

- not later than one year; 60,286 61,110

- later than one year and not later than five years; 232,111 234,684

- later than five years. 1,365,882 1,423,596

Finance charges allocaled lo fulure periods (620,915)  (657,504)

Net PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangement obligation 1,037,364 1,061,886

- not later than one year; 24,534 24,522

- later than one year and not later than five years; 97,460 96,657

- later than five years. 915,370 940,707

Note 22.2 Total on-SoFP PFI, LIFT and other service concession arrangement commitments
Tolal future obligalions under {hese on-SoFP schemes are as f[ollows:
31 March 31 March

2018 2017
£000 £000
Tolal future paymenls commiited in respect of the PFI, LIFT or other
sefvice concession arrangements 5,015,136 4,895,120
Of which liabilities are due:
- not later than one year, 117,221 113,430
- later than one year and not later than five years; 498,930 472,748
- later than five years. 4,398,985 4,408,942

Note 22.3 Analysis of amounts payable to service concession

This note provides an analysis of the trust's payments in 2017/18:
2017118 201617

£000 £000
Unitary payment payable to service concession operator 118,716 142,364
Consisting of:
- Interest charge 36,588 37,324
- Repayment of finance lease liability 24,522 21,602
- Service element and other charges lo operaling expenditure 30,253 57,600
- Capital lifecycle maintenance 3,847 5,680
- Revenue lifecycle maintenance - =
- Conlingent rent 23,506 20,148
Other amounts paid to operator due to a commitment under the
service concession contract but not part of the unitary payment 4,181 -
Total amount paid to service concession operator 122,897 142,364
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22, PFl additlonat information

23.1 Barls and The Royal Lendon Hospltals
The Trusl had embarked on the blggest hospital redevelopment programme in Britain, managed through a £1.15 bilhon capital
expendilure PFI conlrac! with Capitat Hospitals Lid (our PFI Partrer) to build the nevs hospilals

Under the PFI canlracl, which ends on 25th Aprit 2048, the Trust's PRI provider has constructed two new hospitas and provide facililies
managemenl of exisng and new premises for the duralion of the contract Al the conclusion of the contracl, ownership of the assels will
fevert to the Trusl Undor IFRIC 12, the assel Is Bieated as an assel of the Trust with an inlernal rate of reluzn on the finance lease of
3 2755% (extluding contingenl rent) or 7,5% {including estimaled contingent senl in nole 29 3)

The lirsl phases of Barls (phase 1A & 1B) weie commissioned in March 2010, and the sccond phases {phase 2A & 2B) were
commissioned in Seplember 2014, The remalning phase of Barls was commissioned in 20150116 (phase J)

The first phases of The Royal Lonton (Phase 1A & 1B) were commissioned belwesn November 2011 and Febiruary 2012 and the
second phases (Phase 2A and 2B) were commissioned in March 2014

23.2 Barts Hospital and The Royat London Hospltal PRI Seheme commitied fuluro charges: services and buliding maintonance

201718

Lifacyclo Sorvices
Tolal Replacoment  Recoivad
£000s Eocos £000s
Within One Year 27,300 4,683 22,617
Belween One and Five Years 129,559 34,828 094,731
Later than Flvo Yoars 1,274,034 415,925 B58,109
Tolal 1,420,893 455,436 975,457

Lifecycle replacement Is a contraciual

2016117
Lifecycle Sorvices
Tolal Roplacemont  Rocoived
£000s £000s E000s
Wilhin One Year 23,980 4,683 20,479
Belween One and Five Years 116,146 34,828 86,887
Laler han Five Years 1,245,777 415,076 830,701
Total 1,385,903 454,587 938,067

23.3 Barts Hospltal and The Royal London Hospllal PFl Schemo commitied future

payment thal the Trust makes 10 the PFI partner for the mainlenance of the huitdings

charges: provision of buildings

2017118
Ropayment of Contingont
Total Borrowlings Intarast Rent
E0DOs E000s £000s £000s
Within One Year 81,243 23,966 32.5M 24,706
Between One and Five Years 332,437 94,084 122,716 116,637
Later than Five Years 2,936,985 889,991 421,552 1.G25.442
Total 3,350,665 1,008,041 576,89 1,765,785
20en? Repaymen! of Contingeni
Total Borrowings Inferest Rent
£000s £000s EQ00s £000s
Within One Year 74,591 21,482 34,075 19,034
Belween One and Five Years N7.614 93,532 128,807 95,275
Later than Five Years 3,044,917 938.552 481,383 1.624,882
Tola! 3,437,122 1,053,566 644,265 1.739,291

The Trust has to make a contraciual rental payment {o the PFI partner for the use of the bullding during the PFI contract, which is known
as contingent renl. The payment is linked (o movemenis in the Retail Price Index (RP1) and a fulure RPI of 2 5%
the calculalion of these figures {as per guldance issued by the Depariment of Heallh and Social Care Private Finan
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23. PFl additional informalion (cont)

23.4 Newham Unlversity Hospital

The Newham University Hospital PFI scheme is managed through a conlract with John Laing {Healthcare Support Newham
Limiled - HSNL) which ends on 31st March 2039. Al the conclusion of the conliact, ownership of the assels will reverl {o the
Trusl. Under IFRIC 12, the assel is trealed as an assel of the Trust with an internal rate of return on the finance lgase of
11.196% (excluding contingent rent) or 15% (including estimated conlingent rent in note 29 6)

23,6 Newham University Hospltal PF! Scheme committed fulure charges: services and building maintenance

Lifecycle Services
Total Replacement  Recelved
£000s £000s £000s
Within One Year 3,317 518 2,798
Between QOne and Five Years 13,640 1,788 11,852
Laler than Five Years 81,418 20,747 60,671
Total 98,375 23,054 75,321
Lifecycle Services
2016417 Tolal Replacement Received
£000s £000s £000s
Within One Year 4,855 541 4,314
Between One and Five Years 10,220 1,948 B,272
Later than Five Years 66,286 20,783 45,503
Talal 81,361 23,272 58,089

Lifecytle replacement is a contractua) payment thal the Trust makes 1o the PRI pariner for the maintenance af the buildings

23.6 Newham Unlversity Hospital PFI Scheme commitled future charges: provision of buildings

Repayment of Contingent
Total borrowings Interest Rent
£400s £000s E000s £000s
Within One Year 5,361 567 3,182 1,612
Between One and Five Years 23,293 3,377 11,934 7,982
Later Ihan Five Years 106,652 25,380 28,961 52,211
Total 135,206 29,324 44,077 61,805
Repayment of Contingenl
Tolal borrowings Interest Rent
E000s £000s £000s £000s
Within One Year 4,492 119 3,259 1,114
Belween One and Five Years 21,476 2,619 12,553 6,304
Laler than Five Years 115,700 27,183 34,760 53,757
Tolal 141,668 29,921 50,572 61,175

There are no fulure phases for the Newham University Hospital PFl Seheme as it has been handed over to the Trust in Tull.

The Trust has to make a conlractual rental payment to the PFI parner for the use of the building during the PFI contract,
which Is known as contingent rent. The payment is linked to movements in the Relail Price Index (RPY) and a future RP! of
2.5% has been assumed in the calcutalion of these figures (as per guidance issued by the Department of Health Private
Finance Unit)
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Note 24 Carrying values of financlal assets

Asscls al Fair
Loans and  Value Tinough Held 1o Avallable-for. Total Book
Receivables the [RE  Maturity Sale Value
£00D £00D EODD E0DOD E000
Asscls as per SofP as al 39 March 2048
Trade and other recehvables exclding non
finantial ossets 197,692 - - - 197,692
Cash and cash equivalenls ak bank and in hand 3,024 - - - 3,024
Tolal at 31 March 2018 . - - - \
Assels atf Fair
Loans and  Value Through Held to Tolal Book
Receivables the 1&E Matuiily Availablz.for-sale Value
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Assels as par SoFP as al 31 March 2017
Trade and olher receivables cucluding non
financial pssels 164.293 - - - 164,293
Cash and cash equivalents at bank and in hand 3,316 - - - 3.316
Tolat al 31 March 2017 167,609 - - 167,609
Hote 24.1 Camrylng values of linanctal liabiitics
Othor Liabllitles at Falr
Financisl  Value Through Tolal Book
Liabtlities tho I1&E Value
£000 £000 £000
Liabllities as per SofP as at 31 March 2018
Barrowings excluding finance tease and PFI abilities 428,995 - 428,995
Obligations under finance leases 6,091 . 6,091
Obligations vrder PFI, LIFT and olher service concession conlracls 1,037,364 - 1,037,364
Trade and oilier payables excluding non financial abilities 137,984 - 137,984
Total at 31 March 2018 610, - b0,
Other  Liabitilies at Fair
Financla!  Value Through Tolal Book
Liabililies the IGE Value
E000 £000 £000
Liabitities as per SoF P as at 31 March 2017
Bormowings excluding finance lease and PFI liabililies 252,964 . 292,954
Obligations under finance leases 7.517 - 7517
Obligations under PFI, LIFT and olher service concession conlracts 1,061,886 . 1,061,886
Trade and ather payables excluding non financial liabilities 132056 _ 132.056
Total at 31 March 20617 1,494.423 - 1.494.423

Note 24.2 Maturity of financlal llabllities

In one year or less

In more than one year but not more than two years
In more than two years but not mare than five years
In more than five years

Total
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31 March 2018 31 March 2017

£000 £000
282,230 161,952
323719 202,420
01,165 185.014
823.320 945.037
1,610,434 1,484,423
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251

Financial Instruments

Financial risk management

Financial reporting standard IFRS 7 requires disclosure of Ihe role that financial instruments have had dwring the period
in creating or changing the risks a bady faces in underlaking Its activilics. Because of the conlinuing service provider
relalionship Ihat Ihe NHS Trust has with ils commissioners and the way lhose commissloners are financed, the NHS
Trusl is nol exposed to the degree of financial risk faced by business enlities. Also financial instrements play a much
mora limited role in creating or changing risk than would be typical of fisled comparnies, to which the financial reporling
standards mainly apply. The NHS Trust has Imited powers ta borrow or invest surplus funds and financial assets and
liabilities are generaled by day-to-day aperalional aclivilies rather than being held 1o change the risks facing the NHS
Trusl in undertaking ils aclivilies

The Trusl's treasury management operalions are carried oul by the finance depariment, within parameters defined
formally within the Trust's slanding financial insiructions and policies agreed by the board ol direclors Trus! reasury
activily is subjecl to review by the Trust's Interna) audilors

Currency risk

The Trust is principally a demestic organisation with the greal majority of transactions, assels and liabliities being in the
UK and slerling based. The Trusl has no overseas operations. The Trus! therefore bas low exposure lo currency fale
flucluations.

Interest rate risk

The Trust borrows from government for capital expenditure, subject lo affordabiity as confirmed by NHS Improvement.
The borrowings are for 1 - 25 years, in ling wilh the life of the associaled assets, and interest is charged al the Natlonal
Loans Fund rate, fixed for the life of the loan. The Trust therefore has low exposwe to interest rate fluctualions,

The Trust may also borrow from government for revenue financing subject lo approval by NHS Impravemenl. Interest
rales are confwmed by the Department of Health and Socail Care (the lender) at the point borrowing is underaken. The
Trust therefore has low exposure to interest rale fluclvations.

Credit risk

Because lite majority of the Trust's revenue comes from contracts with other public sector bodies, Ihe Trust has low
exposure to credil risk. The maximum exposwies as at 31sl March 2018 are in receivables from cuslomers, as
disclosed in the Irade and other recelvables nole.

Liquidity risk

The Trust's operating costs are incurred under conlracls with CCGs, which are financed from resources voled annually
by Parliament . The Trusl funds its capital expenditure from lunds obtained within is prudenlial borrowing limit. The
Truslis not, therefore, exposed to significant liquidity risks.

Fair Value

In reporting tha value of financial assels and liabilities in notes 25,2 and 25.3. the Trusl has assessed that, given the
nalure of those financial assets and liabililies, fair value is equal to current value, and as such no additional disclosure
Is required.
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Financial Instruments (cont)

25.2 Financial Assels
<---Loans & Receivables --->

201718 2016M7

£000s £000s

Receivables - NHS 150,093 85,835
Receivables - non-NHS 47,600 78,458

Cash at bank and in hand 3,024 3,316
Total at 31st March 200,717 167,609

25.3 Financial Liabilities
<--- Other --->

2017118 2016117
£000s £000s
NHS payables 19,477 25,114
Non-NHS payables 118,507 106,942
Other borrowings 428,995 292,964
PFI & finance lease obligations 1,043,455 1,069,403
Totat at 31st March 1,610,434 1,494,423
26 Events after the end of the reporting period

The Trust is planning to dispose of some of the Whilechapel site in the 2018/19 financial
year,
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Note 27 Losses and special payments

Losses
Cash losses
Fruitless payments
Bad debls and claims abandoned

Stores losses and damage to property
Total losses

Special payments

Ex-gratia paymenls
Total special payments
Total losses and special payments

Compensation payments received

Note 27.1 Gifts

2017/18 201617

Total Total Total
number Total value number value of
of cases of cases of cases cases
Number £000 Number £000
63 g2 39 80

279 1,944 142 1,344

1 1 25 16

343 2,037 206 1,450

78 47 106 41

78 47 106 41

421 2,084 312 1,492

Disclosure of gifts is only required if the total value of gifts made exceeds £300,000.
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Nole 28 Retated Paslles

Barls Healih NHS Trust has had a significant number of matarial transactions wilh the Depanment of Health and Social Care, and will
other entitics for which the Depariment of Health and Social Care is regarded as he parent Depadment During the year none of the
Depailment of Health and Sociat Care ministets. Trust board members or members of the key management stali, or paries related o
any of them, has underlaken any malerial ansactions wilh Barls Health IS Trust

Or Thoreya Swage (non-execulive disector) is a non excculive director of Frimfzy Heallh NHS Foundation Trust Detals of (he
income/expendilurs amounts owed loflrom Frimiey Health NHS FT are included In notes 28 1 and 28 2 below

The table below only shows those entities which exceed either.
a) The tolal omount awed lo / owed by the related parly as ol 31 Masch 2018 excernds £ Vo and / or

b} The total incomefexpenditure transacted with the related parly exceeds £10m

Nate 28.1 Amaunts owed tolfrom refaled pariles

Amounts owed to Amounts due from
related party related party
2017118 201617 2017118 2016017
foon £000 £000 foon
Batking, Havering & Redbridge NHS Trust 593 2,667 1,478 2621
Commaon Council of the City of London 3,704 190 0 0
Community |Heallh Parinersidps a6 135 0 74
Depaniment of Health and Social Cane 0 0 235 430
East London NHS FT 1,026 1,656 5430 4,410
Frimley Health NHS FT 2 2 7 7
Health Educalion England 40 86 88 1,003
HM Revenue and Customs 20,748 719 14,741 10,941
Homerton University Hospital NHS FT 1,542 1,052 201 2,001
Newham Lendon Sorough Council 1.140 265 24 0
NHS Basitdon and Brentwood CCG 1} 0 1,053 2,393
NHS Blaod and Transplant 253 14861 34 0
NHS Camden CCG 0 0 118 490
NHS City and Hackney CCG 40 76 2011 1,234
NHS Enfield CCG 4 4 62 46
NHS Englang 32 27 86,228 29,348
NHS Haringey CCG 51 B 1} 856
NHS Herls Valleys CCG 0 1} 657 GOB
NHS Improvement {TDA legal enlity) 60 66 408 249
NHS Istinglon CCG 4 4 1.014 1,116
NHS Mid Essex CCG 0 0 1.993 1,367
NHS Newham CCG 4,238 2,533 6.679 2,569
NHS Pension Scheme 11,404 121 0 0
NHS Properly Services 4,730 4,522 0 L]
NHS Redbiidge CCG 565 622 861 874
NHS Slough CCG 0 0 554 1,435
NHS Thumock CCG [1] 1] 524 2,724
NHS Tower Hamlels CCG 1,752 1,587 1,790 3,719
NHS Waltham Forest CCG 984 1,044 2,098 1,254
NHS Weslt Essex CCG 82 12 1,405 1,480
Cueen Mary Universily of London 539 1,056 1,493 2,574
Royal Free London NHS FT 1.082 1,332 2,850 4,153
Tower Hamlels London Borough Council 9,807 611 66 737
Unlversity College London NHS FT 1.344 4,785 2,306 3,012
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Note 28 Related Parties {cont)

Note 28.2 Incomelexpenditure with relaled parties

Barls Heaith Charity

BOA & Associales Consullancy Limited
Depariment of Heallh and Social Care
Frimley Health NHS FT

Health Educalion England

HM Revenue and Customs

NHS Barking and Dagenham CCG
NHS Barnet CCG

NHS Camden CCG

NHS Cily and Hackney CCG

NHS Enfield CCG

NHS England

NHS Haringey CCG

NHS Havering CCG

NHS Islinglon CCG

NHS Newham CCG

NHS Pension Scheme

NHS Redbridge CCG

NHS Resolution

NHS Tower Hamiets CCG

NHS Walitham Forest CCG

NHS West Essex CCG

Queen Mary University of London
Royal Free London NHS FT

Tower Hamlels London Barough Council
Universily College Londen NHS FT

2017118
£000

7,035

0
18,284
18
77,658
0
23,747
2,422
2,272
28,601
6,433
567,546
5,963
11,312
6,676
201,666
0
67,974
0
170,748
144,198
22,736
3,780
8,398
4,571
231
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Income from Related Party

201617

£000
8,777
0
39,878
K
78,687
0
24,352
o
0
30,156
o
513,841
o
12,601
0
188,865
o
66,205
248
186,806
140,546
21,435
3.341
13,399
4,899
1,744

Expenditure with Related

Party

201718
£000

268

119

0

12

11

77,150

[=1]
ODO0OO0OO0OCOQOCO

1,507
76,832
0
45,584
402

]

10
14,631
7,904
0
9,243

201617
£000

fo2}
(o1}
[#:]
VWO oo

[

fi=]
DOD@OQODO&
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Note 29 Betier Payment Practice Code

Non-NHS Payablos

Tolal non-NHS Irade invaices paid in he
year

Total non-NHS trade invoices paid wilhin
largel

Pereenlage of non-NHS trade Invoices paid
within largel

NHS Payables

Tolal NHS Irade invoices pald in the year

Tolal NHS trade involces paid wilhin tarpet
Percentage of NHS trade involces paid
wilhin target

2017118 201718 201617 201617
Number fooo Number £000
184,464 927,402 201,749 1098972
121,871 764,019 147,334 843.818
66 07% B2 48% 73.03% 85 88%
4,616 264063 3,605 264,576
2,235 236,092 1,932 250,202
48 42% B9.71% 53 59% 94 57%

The Better Payment Practice code requires the NHS body 1o afrm lo pay all valid invoices by the due

date or within 30 days of recelpl of valid invoice, whichever is laler.

Note 30 External flnancing

The trustis given an extemnal financing mil against which Ul is pemmilled to underspend:

Cash flow inancing

Finance leases taken out in year
Other capitat receipts

External financing requirement
External financing Emit (EFL)
Under ! {over) sperd agamst EFL

Nole 31 Capital Resource Limit

Gross capital expendilure
Less Disposals

Less Donated and granied capilal additions

Plus Loss on dispasal of donaledigranted
assels

Charge against Capltal Resource Limit

Capltal Resource Limit
Under ! {over) spend against CRL

Note 32 Breakeven duty financial

Adjusted financial perfarmance susplus /
(deficit) {contro! (otal basis)

Remove impaimmenls scoring 1o
Departmental Expendilure Limit

Add back income for impact of 2016717
post-accounis STF reallacation

Add back non-cash element ol On-SoFP
pension scheme chames

IFRIC 12 breakeven adjusiment

Breakeven duty financial pedormance
suiplus f {deficit)

2017118 201617
£000 £000
115,237 147,476
0 [
115,237 147,476
115,814 147,792
577 316
201718 201617
£000 £000
36,263 53,196
n {306)
{6,795) (6.036)
29,397 46,854
33.196 47.745
3.799 891
201718 201617
£000 £000
{108,782} {69.481)
419 -
{108.363) i69.481)
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